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NOTICE OF THE FOURTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

SHORTER NOTICE is hereby given that the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the members of
Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited will be held on Monday, September 30, 2024 at 2.00 p-m.
at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 503/504, 5 Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex,
Mafatlal Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai — 400013, to transact
following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

I. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company comprising of the
Audited Balance Sheet as on March 31 . 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon along with
its annexures thereon.

[SS]

To appoint M/s. SRBC & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number:
324982E/E300003) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

L

Ratification of remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the Financial Year 2024-25:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 including any amendment, modification, or
variation thereof, the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of Rs. 70,000/- (Rupees Seventy Thousand
Only) plus applicable taxes & re-imbursement of out-of-pocket expenses payable to M/s. Dilip M. Malkar
& Co., Cost Accountant (Firm Registration No, 101222) who have been appointed by the Board of
Directors as the Cost Auditors of the Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company as

prescribed under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, for the Financial Year ending
March 31, 2025.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Director or the Company Secretary of the Company be
and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be considered necessary, desirable and
expedient for giving effect to the aforementioned resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Glass Wall Systems ia) Private Limited

Shruti Waghela ' %)
Company Secretary
ACS: 69825

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) PVT. LTD. .
503-504, 5" Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N. M. Joshi Marg,
Lower Parel (E], Mumbai 400013. | Tel. / Fax No: +81 22 6103 3456
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Date: September 27, 2024
Place: Mumbai

Registered Office:

503/504, 5" Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex
Mafatlal Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi Marg,
Lower Parel (East), Mumbai — 400013.

CIN: U74999MH2010PTC207187

Tel: +91 22 6103 3456 Fax: +91 22 6103 3401.

Email : csi@glasswallsystem.com

)

Website: www.glasswallsvstems.in

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS [INDIA) PVT. LTD.
503-504, 5 Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N. M. Jashi Marg,
Lower Parel ([E}, Mumbai 400013. | Tel. / Fax No: +91 22 6103 3456

E: info@glasswallsystem.com | W: www.glasswallsystems.in
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(%)

NOTES:

The Explanatory Statement setting out material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013,

relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto and forms part of this
Notice.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and
vote instead of himself/herself and proxy need not be a member.

Proxies, in order to be effective, should be complete, stamped and signed and must be deposited at the
registered office of the company before the commencement of the meeting.

A proxy form is enclosed for use, if necessary, by the members.

Members/proxies are requested to bring the duly filled Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to attend the
meeting.

Electronic copy of the Notice of the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company along with
Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with the
Company/Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes unless any member has requested for a
hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the
Notice of the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company along with Attendance Slip and Proxy
Form is being sent in the permitted mode.

A Route Map showing the directions to reach the venue of the Annual General Meeting is given at the end
of this Notice as per the requirement of the Secretarial Standards-2 on ‘General Meeting’.

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS [INDIA) PVT. LTD.

503-504, 5* Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N. M. Joshi Marg,
Lower Parel [E], Mumbai 400013. | Tel. / Fax No: +31 22 6103 3456
E: info@glasswallsystem.com | W: www.glasswallsystems.in
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™)

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to Item No. 3 mentioned in the accompanying
Notice.

ITEM NO. 3 - Ratification of remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the Financial Year 2024-25:

As per Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, the Board while appointing the Cost Auditor is required to approve the remuneration payable
to them as per the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the remuneration so approved by the Board
shall be ratified by the Shareholders.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company has on the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s. Dilip M. Malkar & Co., Cost Accountant as the Cost
Auditors of the Company, to conduct audit of cost records of the Company for the Financial Year ending
March 31, 2025, at a remuneration of Rs. 70,000/~ (Rupees Seventy Thousand only) plus applicable taxes
& re-imbursement of out-of- pocket expenses.

The consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of the

Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year ending
March 31, 2025.

None of the Directors, Key Management Personnel of the Company, or their relatives, are concerned or
interested in the said resolution,

The Board recommends passing of the resolution as set outat [tem No.3 as an Ordinary Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Glass Wall Systems (Ipgi ivate Limited

< N
\,\)«‘*’\f\ f m \ f;\‘l
# B

- :

Shruti Waghela \o \_E‘Sl

Company Secretary w

ACS: 69825

Date: September 27, 2024
Place: Mumbai

Registered Office:
503/504, 5" Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex.
Mafatlal Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi Marg,
Lower Parel (East), Mumbai — 400013

CIN: U74999MH2010PTC207187

Tel: +91 22 6103 3456 Fax: +91 22 6103 3401
Email glasswallsyster.com

Website : www.olassw;

&

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) PVT. LTD. .
503-504, 5 Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N. M. Joshi Marg,
Lower Parel [E), Mumbai 400013. | Tel. / FaxNo: +31 22 6103 3456

E: info@glasswallsystem.com | W: www.glasswallsystems.in
AN ISO 9001 : 2015 COMPANY | CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER : U74999MH2010PTC207187
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Form MGT-11
Proxy Form
[Pursuant to Section 1 05(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule ] 9(3) of the

Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 ']

CIN
Name of the Company
Registered Office

: U74999MH2010PTC207187
: Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited

: 503/504, 5" Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatl
Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi Marg,
Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013.

Name of the Member(s) :
Registered Address
E-mail Id

Folio No. / Client Id and DP 1d

E-mail Id:

SIgNAtUre: ..ot , or failing him

SIgNature: .....oooooiiiiiii , or failing him

...................................................................

BT o o8 oo s S B

as my/our Proxy to attend and vote (on poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Fourteenth Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Monday, September 30, 2024 at the registered office of the
Company situated at 503/504, 5" Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi

Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbaj — 400013, at 2.00 p.m. or at any adjournment thereof in respect of
resolutions as indicated below:

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) PVT. LTD. |

503-504, 5" Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compaound, N. M. Joshi Marg,
Lower Parel [E], Mumbai 400013. | Tel. / Fax No : +91 ?E 5103 3456

E: info@glasswallsysterm.com | W: www.glasswallsystems.in

AN IS0 9001 : 2015 COMPANY | CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER : U74999MH2010PTC207187
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Sr. Resolutions

No.
Ordinary Business
Ls To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company comprising

of the Audited Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss and
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon along with its annexures thereon.

To appoint M/s. SRBC & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number:
324982E/E300003) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration.

Special Business

[

3 Ratification of remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the Financial Year 2024-25,
Affix
Signed this ......... dayief..c..u 2024, Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Shareholder .

R TR E T *esssssssenees

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

sessarensenns R T T

Note:
a) Revenue Stamp to be affixed on this form.

b) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 (forty-

eight) hours before the commencement of
the Meeting.

3

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) PVT. LTD. '
503-504, 5* Floor, A Wing, Marathan Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N. M. Joshi Marg, -
: l Tall Buildi
Lower Parel ([E], Mumbai 400013. | Tel. / Fax No: +91 22 6103 3456 Maﬁ
[ 2 ; llsystems.in
E: info@glasswallsystern.com | W: www.glasswa === umen
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited

Registered Office: 503/504, 5™ Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi
Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai — 400013,

Please complete this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance of the place of the meeting.

Folio No./ Client ID: DP ID:

Name of the Shareholder/Proxy:

Address:

No. of shares held:

I hereby record my presence at the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Monday,
September 30, 2024 at the registered office of the Company situated at 503/504, 5% Floor, A Wing,

Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai — 400013 at
2.00 p.m.

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) PVT. LTD. ‘ %%
503-504, 5* Floar, A Wing, Marathan Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N. M. Joshi Marg, %g%‘j:':mm
Lower Parel (E), Mumbai 400013. | Tel. / Fax No: +391 2? 6103 3456 ;; gmnmm
E: info@glasswallsystem.com | W: www.glasswallsystems.in ==
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ROUTE MAP OF THE VENUE OF FOURTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Registered office of the Company: 503-504, 5" Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal
Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai —400013.

Landmark: Near Currey Road Railway station.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members,

Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited
503-504, 5™ Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex,
Mafatlal Mills Compound,

N.M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East).

Mumbai —400013.

Your directors take pleasure in presenting the Fourteenth Annual Report on the business and
operations of your Company. together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2024.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The Company’s financial performance for the year under review along with previous year’s
figures is given hereunder:

Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs)
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023

Revenue from Operations 27,753.80 23,900.07
Other Income 1,050.89 321.54
Total Income 28,804.69 24,221.61
Less: Total Expenditure 25,107.57 24,201.06
Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and Tax 3697.12 20.55
Less: Exceptional items 1618.86 -
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 2078.26 20.55
Tax Expenses

Current Tax (28.68) -
Deferred Tax - -
Total Tax Expense (28.68) -
Profit / (Loss) After Tax 2,106.94 20.55

2. STATE OF AFFAIRS OF YOUR COMPANY:

Your Company reported revenue from operations of Rs. 27,753.80/- lakhs during the year under
review as compared to Rs. 23,900.07/- lakhs in the previous financial year.

Further, your company has earned profit after tax of Rs. 2,106.94/- lakhs during the year under
review as compared to profit after tax of Rs. 20.55/- lakhs in the previous financial year.

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS [INDIA) PVT. LTD.
503-504, 5 Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N. M. Joshi Marg,
Lower Parel ([E), Mumbai 400013. | Tel. / Fax No: +91 22 6103 3456 i

E: info@glasswallsystem.com | W: www.glasswallsystems.in o o sl et
AN ISD 9001 : 2015 COMPANY | CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER : U74999MH2010PTC207187 M E M B8 ER MEMB E\W
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Further, during the year under review your management had focused on reducing debt and
improving cash flows to strengthen financial position of the Company.Your Company has
sustained credit rating provided by Acuite Ratings and Research Limited which is ‘ACUITE
BBB-" (read as ACUITE triple B minus) for Long Term Rating and ‘ACUITE A3’ (read as
ACUITE A three) for Short Term Rating.

3. FUTURE PROSPECTS:

Your company will be targeting commercial and infrastructure projects as well as Export
markets. Your Company is further focusing on the project having quick turnaround time and
client having better cash flow.

4. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review forms part of this report
and is enclosed as Annexure ‘A’.

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

Your directors have decided not to transfer any amount in General Reserves of the Company
during the year under review.

6. DIVIDEND:

The Company wishes to utilize earned revenues for future growth and hence have decided not
to recommend any payment of dividend on normal equity shares as at March 31, 2024.

However, after the closure of financial year ended March 31, 2024, as per terms and conditions
of Class B Equity Shares, your directors have at their Board Meeting held on July 11, 2024,
approved the payment of 2 % (two percent) coupon per annum on subscription amount for F.Y.
2023-2024 and F.Y. 2024-2025 for the period April 01, 2024 to June 12, 2024,

7. DEPOSITS:

Your Company has not accepted any Deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,

8. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There was no change in the nature of the business of your company during the year under
review.

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS [INDIA] PVT. LTD. %§

503-504, 5% Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N. M. Joshi Marg, g§ —

Lower Parel [E), Mumbai 400013. | Tel. / Fax No: +31 22 6103 3456 == 75,;5,,"“,,,,
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9. SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

During the year under review, your Company did not have any Subsidiary or Associate
Company.

Further, Joint Venture Company named Indus Facades Private Limited was struck off w.e.f.
December 30, 2023.

10. SHARE CAPITAL:

During the year under review, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company stood at
Rs. 26,00,00,000/- divided into 2,15,45,405 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and 44,54,595 Class
B Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company stood at Rs.
19,43,82,350/- divided into 1,49,83.640 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and 44,54,595 Class B
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, unchanged since the last financial year.

After the closure of financial year ended March 31, 2024, following changes took place:

(a) The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on May 25, 2024 approved
the proposal for buy-back of 42,53,910 fully paid-up equity shares (including Class B
Equity Shares) of face value of Rs. 10/- in accordance with Sections 68, 69, 70 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, at a price of Rs. 10/~ per share for an
aggregate amount not exceeding Rs. 4,25,39,100, (which is less than 10% of the paid-up
capital and free reserves of the Company as per Special Purpose Interim Condensed
Accounts as at December 31, 2023).

Post completion of above buy-back, the issued, subscribed and paid - up Capital of the
company changed to Rs. 15,18,43,250/- divided into 1,07,29,730 Equity shares of Rs.
10/- each and 44,54,595 Class B Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

(b) There was change in the Authorised Share Capital structure of the Company from
existing Authorised Share Capital of Rs. 26,00,00,000/- divided into 2,15,45,405 Equity
shares of Rs. 10/- each and 44,54,595 Class B Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, into Rs.
26,00.00,000/- divided into 2,60,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. The same was
approved at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on July 11, 2024.

(c) Further, 44,54,595 Class B Equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 each, were
converted into 44,54,595 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. The same was approved at the
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on July 11, 2024.

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) PVT. LTD. %Q
503-504, 5 Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N. M. Joshi Marg, g Caamii
Lower Parel [E), Mumbai 400013. | Tel. / Fax No : +31 22 6103 3456 é;::ﬂhllﬂlnu
E: info@glasswallsystem.com | W: www.glasswallsystems.in === (en vt
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11. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND:

During the year under review, there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

12. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

As required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 8(3)
of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the concerned particulars relating to Energy
Conservation, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are given in
Annexure ‘B’ which is attached hereto and forms part of the Directors” Report.

13. RISK MANAGEMENT AND ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has internal control mechanism., commensurate for its size and business
processes, for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including and
adherence to the Company’s Policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of its frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and
accurate reporting of financial transactions. The internal financial control systems are designed
and modified from time to time to ensure that the financial and other records are reliable for
preparing financial statements and other data and for maintaining accountability of assets.

The Board of Directors of the Company assess and oversee to the possible risky situations and
through concerted actions, the risk is mitigated as early as possible. The Company's Risk
Management process focuses on ensuring that risks are identified on a timely basis and
addressed. The audit committee additionally oversees the area of financial risks and controls.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate disclosure controls and
procedures and adequate internal controls over financial reporting with respect to financial
statements besides its effectiveness in the context of applicable regulations. The Internal
Auditor, the Audit Committee as well as the Board of Directors conduct from time to time an
evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal controls for financial
reporting with respect to financial statements.

14, CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

During the year under review, the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility and Policy) Rules, 2014 is not applicable
to your Company.

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) PVT. LTD. __%g
503-504, 5* Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N. M. Jashi Marg, %/§ o
Lower Parel (E], Mumbai 400013. | Tel. / Fax No: +81 22 6103 3456 g% Lol
E: info@glasswallsystem.com | W: www.glasswallsystems.in === i aa
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15. POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS® APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF DUTIES:

The Company has not devised any policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of
Managerial remuneration, Director’s qualifications, positive attributes, independence of
Directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178 (3) of the Companies Act,
2013.

16. LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

During the year under review, the Company did not grant any loan or provide any guarantees or
Investments as per the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All related party transactions entered into during the financial year under review by the
Company were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There are no
material significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with
the interest of the Company at large. A statement of all related party transactions entered was
presented before the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis, specifying the nature, value and any
other related terms and conditions of the transactions.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the current financial year are provided in Form AOC 2 enclosed

herewith as Annexure ‘C’.

18. DETAILS OF STATUTORY AUDITORS:

The members of the Company had, at the 9" Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on
September 30, 2019, approved the appointment of M/s. SRBC & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants, Mumbai, bearing ICAl Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003 as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company to hold office, for the second term of five consecutive years i.e. up to
the conclusion of Fourteenth Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, re-appointment of M/s SRBC & Co
LLP, Chartered Accountant (ICAl Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003) as Statutory
Auditors of the company is proposed for Five Financial Years commencing from April 01,
2024, till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held for the Financial Year
ending on March 31, 2029, at a remuneration as may be decided by the Board with the mutual
consent of the auditors.
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The Company has received a consent letter from them to the effect that their appointment, if
made, would be as per the prescribed eligibility and rules.

19. STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT:

The Statutory Auditor qualified their audit report on the basis of the VAT assessment completed
for certain prior years, a provision of Rs. 3,121.30 lakhs as of the balance sheet date, is required
in respect of other years where assessments are not concluded. No provision is recognized by
the company in this regard on the basis that such amounts can be recovered from the customers,
which we are unable to ascertain. Had the company recognized a provision in respect of the said
liability, ‘Other Expenses' and 'Provision for Litigation' would have increased by Rs. 3,121.30
lakhs and tax expense and net profit would have reduced by Rs. Nil and Rs. 3,121.30 lakhs
respectively, for the year ended March 31, 2024 and shareholders' funds would have reduced by
Rs. 3,121.30 lakhs as of the balance sheet date.

20. BOARD’S COMMENT ON THE AUDITOR’S REPORT:

On the qualification made by the Statutory Auditor, your directors believe that the Company has
very good and strong case on merits. Your directors further believe that in the event aforesaid
amount is payable by the Company, the similar amount can be recovered from the respective
customers. Hence, your director is having strong opinion that no provision needs to be made in
the financial statement. The Auditors’ observations on the accounts have been elaborately dealt
with in the notes to Financial Statements and are self-explanatory in nature and as such do not
require any further comments or explanations.

21. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-
SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE REPORTABLE TO THE
CENTRAL GOVERNMENT:

During the year under review, no fraud by the Company, by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of audit.

22. COST AUDITORS:

The Board of Directors of the Company at their Board meeting held on May 19, 2023 pursuant
to the recommendation of Audit Committee had appointed M/s. Dilip M. Malkar & Co., Cost
Accountants (Registration No. 101222) as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial
Year 2023-24 at a remuneration of Rs. 70,000/~ (Rupees Seventy Thousand only) plus
Applicable Tax & re-imbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, subject to the ratification of the
said remuneration by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, according to Section 148
of the Companies Act, 2013.
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The Cost Audit Report was filed with the Central Government within prescribed timelines.

23. SECRETERIAL AUDITOR:

During the year under review, Secretarial Audit is not applicable to the Company.

24. INTERNAL AUDITOR:

In terms of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, M/s. ASA &
Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants were appointed as the Internal Auditors of the
Company for the Financial Year 2023-24, to introduce adequate control and to conduct Internal
Audit of functions and activities of the Company.

25. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Following were the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company as on
March 31, 2024:

Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani (DIN: 00740482)

Mr. Eshan Hemrajani (DIN: 02987292)

Mr. Kamlesh Choudhari (DIN: 00740645)

Mrs. Sunita Choudhari (DIN: 02987268)

Mr. Prakash Bagla (DIN: 03043874)

Mr. Sanjay Sawant — Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Mrs. Rajeshree Chougule (Whole - time Company Secretary)

B B b

~N O W

During the year under review, designation of Mr. Eshan Hemrajani changed from Non-
executive Director to Executive Director, w.e.f. September 30, 2023.

After the closure of financial year ended March 31, 2024, following changes took place:

Date Name of Directors/ KMP | Designation Appointment/

Cessation/ Change
in Designation

April 16,2024 | Mr. Sanjay Sawant Chief Financial Cessation
Officer (CFO)

July 11,2024 Mr. Kamlesh Choudhari Director Cessation

July 11,2024 | Mrs. Sunita Choudhari Director Cessation

July 11,2024 | Mr. Vivek Baid Chief Financial Officer| Appointment
(CFO)

July 11, 2024

Mrs. Rajeshree Chougule

Whole — time Company
Secretary

Cessation

July 11,2024

Ms. Shruti Waghela

Whole — time Company

Appointment

Secretary
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The Company was not required to appoint Independent Directors under the provisions of the
Act and hence, statement on declaration under section 149(6) is not applicable.

26. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

During the year under review, five Board Meetings were held. The provisions of Companies
Act, 2013 were adhered to while considering the time gap between two meetings, wherever
required. The details of the meetings convened during the year are as under:

Dates on which Board Meetings were| Total Strength of the No. of Directors
held Board present

April 11,2023 5 5
May 19, 2023 5 5
August 07, 2023 5 5
October 13, 2023 5 5
February 06, 2024 5 5

27. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

As a part of good corporate governance, Audit Committee; Human Resource-Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee have been
constituted. The details of the committee meetings convened during the year are as under:

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee of the Company met on following dates:

Dates on which Audit Committee Total Strength of the | No. of Members present
Meetings were held Committee
April 11,2023
May 19, 2023
August 07, 2023
February 06, 2024

2| L2 W | W
W W W W

HUMAN RESOURCE-NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Human Resource-Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company met on following

dates:
Date on which Human Resource- Total Strength of the | No. of Members
Nomination and Remuneration Committee | Committee present
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Meetings were held

May 19, 2023

August 07, 2023

(OS] S

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company met on following dates:

Dates on which Corporate Social Responsibility | Total Strength of | No. of Members
Committee Meetings were held the Committee present
May 19, 2023 3 3

28. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The Company had no employee in respect of whom the statement under section 197 of the Act

is required to be furnished.

29. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

As required under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors, to the best of
their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanation obtained by them,

state that:

. in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable

accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

. we have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of March 31, 2024 and of the profit for the year
ended on that period;

. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

. the attached Annual Statement of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been on

a ‘going concern’ basis; and
=]

. proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place

and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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30. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The Vigil functions of the Company are being overscen by Board of Directors. Your directors
have provided an avenue for all the employees of the Company as a *Whistle Blower’ to come
forward and raise his/her concerns on suspect or wrongful conduct without fear of punishment
or unfair treatment through designated Email ID (suggestions@glasswallsystem.com) and
suggestion box placed at registered office of the Company.

31. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

During the year under review, the industrial relations remained cordial. Your Directors
recognize and appreciate the sincere hard work, loyalty, dedicated efforts and contribution of all
the employees. Despite severe competition, the enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of the
employees has enabled the Company to remain at the forefront of the industry. The Company
continues to accord a very high priority to both industrial safety and environmental protection
and these are ongoing process at the site and facilities.

32. MATERIAL CHANGES:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate and the date of
this report.

33. DISCLOSURE _AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has always provided a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual
working in its premises through various policies and practices. The Company always
endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and
harassment including sexual harassment. The Company is actively involved in ensuring that the
employees/resources are aware of the provisions of the POSH Act and rights thereunder.

The Company has constituted an Internal Committee (IC) as required under POSH Act and the
constitution of the committee is in compliance with the said Act.

The Company has also adopted Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in place which is in line with
requirements of the POSH Act, 2013 and is fully committed to uphold and maintain the dignity
of every woman executive working in the Company. The Company’s Policy provides for
protection against sexual harassment at workplace and for prevention and redressal of such
complaints.

Number of complaints filed during the financial year: 0
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Number of complaints disposed off during the year: 0
Number of complaints pending as on the end of the financial year: 0

34. ANNUAL RETURN:

As per Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the copy of the annual return for the
Financial Year 2023-24 shall be made available at https://www.glasswallsystems.in/.

35. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL:

No significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

36. OTHER DECLARATIONS, INFORMATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS:

. Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 was held on
September 30, 2023.

2. Applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘“Meetings of the Board of
Directors” and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly observed by the
Company.

3. The Company has not issued any employee stock option during the financial year as per
Rule 12 of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

4. The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the financial year in
accordance with the provisions of Section 54 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of
the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014,

37. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER
THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR
ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

During the year under review, the Company did not make any applications under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 nor there are any proceeding pending under the said Code. Hence,
disclosure under this clause is not applicable to the Company.

38. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT
THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE
TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS:

During the year under review, there were no instances of one-timeysettlement with any bank or

financial institution.
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39. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Board of Directors place on record their gratefulness for the continued and timely
assistance and excellent co-operation received from the Bankers, various Government
Departments and valued business associates. At the same time, your directors also express their
gratitude to the Company’s customers, shareholders, suppliers, dealers and employees for their
great support and continued confidence.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited

Jawahar H. Hemrajani Eshan J. Hemrajani

Director Director

DIN: 00740482 B DIN: 02987292

1;-2701’1 ;’ e e fsl""g'“f[’ B-2701/2702, Plot No 5, Tharwani
ector 19, Paim Beach Koad, Sanpada Heights, Sector 18, Palm Beach Road,

Navi Mumbai 400705. Sanpada Navi, Mumbai 400705.

Date : September 16, 2024
Place : Mumbai
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ANNEXURE A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Industry Structure & Development

The Indian facade market was valued at approx. USD 2.6 Million in 2023. The market is
projected to reach around USD 5 Million 2032. This growth projection is supported by the
increasing demand for modern and sustainable building solutions. The compound annual
growth rate (CAGR) is estimated to be between 7.20% between 2024 to 2032. This significant
projected growth rate reflects the rising investments in infrastructure and real estate, alongside
technological advancements in building materials and design.

Rapid urbanization in India is a major driver, with cities expanding and new urban canters
being developed. This leads to a higher demand for residential and commercial buildings,
which in turn fuels the facade market. Large-scale infrastructure projects, including airports,
metro systems, hospitals and smart cities, are increasing the need for advanced facade
solutions. There is a growing emphasis on sustainable construction practices. Facades play a
crucial role in improving a building's energy efficiency by providing insulation, reducing heat
gain, and allowing for natural light.

Opportunities & Threats

The fagade & fenestration market in India is poised for substantial growth driven by
urbanization, infrastructure development, and increasing emphasis on sustainability and energy
efficiency. Innovations in materials, technologies, and design will play a crucial role in
meeting these demands, while regulatory support and market incentives will further accelerate
adoption.

Further, aggressive and organized efforts on the part of manufacturers and processors are
expected to achieve higher levels of awareness among glass specifiers and users. Constant
technical innovations by manufacturers are keeping customers continuously interested in glass
and glass products. In the next few years, the Indian architectural glass market will move to
much higher levels. This ever-growing popularity of glass as a material, will ensure growth.

Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited is a leading fagade engineering company engaged
in providing complete solutions in architectural fagade and glass wall curtains. The Company
has its Processing factory in Mangaon, Raigad. With over 22 years of operational excellence,
the company has solidified its reputation as a pioneer known for delivering innovative and
technically demanding fagade solutions across diverse projects. The company’s projects serve
as benchmarks of excellence, integrating advanced materials and design principles to enhance
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building aesthetics and performance and the Company translates the vision of clients into
reality. The Financial Performance of the Company are given in the Directors’ Report.

Human Resource

Your company gives utmost importance to Human Resource. It considers Human Resource as
Human Capital and believes in development of Human Resource. Over the years, your
company has developed an environment, which fosters excellence in performance by
empowering its people, who are always on continuous improvement path with an ultimate aim
to add value to their intellectual and knowledge resources. The key focus is to attract, retain
and develop talent as a resource through rewards mechanism, performance evaluation and
harmonious & constructive working climate. As on March 31, 2024 the Company had 227
permanent employees on the payroll.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company has in place a well-established framework of internal control systems which are
commensurate with the size and complexity of its business. The Company has an independent
internal audit function covering major areas of operations and the same is carried out by
external Chartered Accountant firm engaged for this purpose.

Segment-Wise or Product-Wise Performance

The Company has only one business segment "Construction Activities" as its primary segment
and hence disclosure of segment-wise information is not required under Accounting Standard
17 - *Segmental Information’.
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Cautionary Statement

Statements in this report describing the Company's objectives, expectations or predictions may
be forward looking within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. The actual results
may differ materially from those expressed in this statement because of many factors like
economic condition, availability of labour, price conditions, domestic market, changes in
Government policies, tax regime, etc. The Company assumes no responsibility to amend,
modify or revise any statement based on any development, information and event.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited

oo

Jawahar H. Hemra]a\m Eshan J. Hemrajani
Director Director
DIN: 00740482 DIN: 02987292
B-2701, Plot No 5, Tharwani Heights ;
’ ’ ’ DX h:
Sector 18, Palm Beach Road, Sanpada B270127012, Blot Noia, Tisrwant
Navi Mumbai 400705.

SHEEE

Sanpada Navi, Mumbai 400705.

Date : September 16, 2024
Place : Mumbai

Heights, Sector 18, Palm Beach Road,
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ANNEXURE - B

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo required under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY':

i. Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

As a responsible corporate, we are determined to adopt an appropriate energy
conservation measure wherever possible and also create continuous awareness among
employees to take energy conservation measures at individual level. Further satellite
assembly units at Bengaluru, Karnataka and at Gurgaon, Haryana helped the Company
to execute projects timely and cost-effective manner leads to conservation of fuel.

ii. Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

No specific action taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy.

iii. The capital investment on energy conservation equipments:

No capital investment was made during the year. Your Directors are keen to find ways
and means which can possibly further reduce the consumption of energy.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

i. the efforts made towards technology absorption:

- Implementation and utilization of advanced software such as *SAP*
- Recycling of Aluminium Waste

ii. the benefits derived like product improvement. cost reduction. product development or
import substitution:

Areas Benefits derived
Implementation and utilization SAP helped in effective supply chain management
of advanced software where as Orgadata helped in minimizing human

error and control waste which resulted into high
quality production.

Recycling of Aluminium Waste | Helped the Company in re-usages of material and
minimize scrape.
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iii. in case of imported technology (imported during the last three vears reckoned from the

beginning of the financial year)- NIL

the year of import;

ao ow

thereof; and

the details of technology imported;

whether the technology been fully absorbed;
if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons

iv. the expenditure incurred on Research and Development:

No specific expenditure incurred on Research and Development.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 2023 -2024 2022 -2023
Foreign exchange earnings: 14,067.79 1,320.37
Foreign exchange outgo: 1988.88 211.41

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited

e o

Jawahar H. Hemrajani
Director

DIN: 00740482

B-2701, Plot No §, Tharwani Heights,
Sector 18, Palm Beach Road, Sanpada
Navi Mumbai 400705.

Date : September 16,2024
Place : Mumbai

AT 2

Eshan J. Hemrajani
Director
DIN: 02987292

B-2701/2702, Plot No 5, Tharwani

Heights, Sector 18, Palm Beach Road,

Sanpada Navi, Mumbai 400705.
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ANNEXURE- C

Form No. AOC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis:

Not Applicable, as all transactions are at Arm’s Length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length_basis:

Sr. | Particulars Details Details

No. (1) (2)

1 Name (s) of the | M.J. Coaters Private Limited GWS Engineers & Fabricators
related party . Private Limited

2 Nature of Directors are interested Directors are interested
relationship

3 Nature of Job Work/ Sub-contract Services/ Other| Purchase of Materials,
contracts/ Services service received: Job Work/ Sub-contract Services/
arrangements Reimbursement of expenses Paid / Other Services service received,
/transactions (Received) Revenue from Construction

contracts.

Duration of the
contracts/ Terminable at will

4 arrangements/
transactions

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) PVT. LTD.

503-504, 5* Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N. M. Jashi Marg,

Lower Parel [E), Mumbai 400013. | Tel. / Fax No : +91 22 6103 3456
E: info@glasswallsystem.cam | W: www.glasswallsystems.in
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Salient terms of
the contracts or Normal Terms
arrangements or
transactions
including the
value, if any

Date of approval

by the Board April 11,2023

Amount paid as NIL
advances, if any

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited

£ \J\

-
Mumbaj 1}1
<

el

‘{,,; 400013 /= /
Jawahar H. Hemrajani' o ,_,-,.\)’f“/f/' Eshan J. Hemrajani
. * # .
Director Director
DIN: 00740482 DIN: 02987292

B-2701, Plot No 5, Tharwani Heights,
Sector 18, Palm Beach Road, Sanpada
Navi Mumbai 400705.

B-2701/2702, Plot No 5, Tharwani
Heights, Sector 18, Palm Beach Road,
Sanpada Navi, Mumbai 400705.

Date : September 16, 2024
Place : Mumbai
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S R B C & CO LLP ' 1st Floor, Block B - 7, North Side
Nirlon Knowledge Park, Near Hub Mall
Chartered Accountants Off Western Express Highway

Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400063, India

Tel : +91 22 6819 8000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss and
the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for
the effects of the matter described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ section of our report, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As stated in note 29 to the financial statements, basis the VAT assessment completed for certain prior years,
a provision of Rs. 3,121.30 lakhs as of the balance sheet date, is required in respect of other years where
assessments are not concluded. No provision is recognized by the company in this regard on the basis that
such amounts can be recovered from the customers, which we are unable to ascertain. Had the company
recognized a provision in respect of the said liability, ‘Other Expenses' and 'Provision for Litigation' would
have increased by Rs. 3,121.30 lakhs and tax expense and net profit would have reduced by Rs. Nil and Rs.
3,121.30 lakhs respectively, for the year ended March 31, 2024 and shareholders' funds would have reduced
by Rs. 3,121.30 lakhs as of the balance sheet date. Our opinion for the year ended March 31, 2023 also
modified in respect of this matter.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on
the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial

SRBC&COLLP aLimited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB - 4318
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statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, as amended, specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

SRBC&COLLP aLimited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4318
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based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 17
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion Paragraph,
obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) Except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph and for the matter
stated in the paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g), in our opinion, proper books of
account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in
our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, as
amended, specified under section 133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph and paragraph (b) above and paragraph
(i)(vi) below;

SRBCE&COLLP aLimited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4318
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(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2024;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

il

iii.

1v.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 29 to the financial statements;

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts — Refer Note 28 to the financial statements;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The final dividend paid by the Company during the year in respect of the same declared for the
previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment
of dividend.

The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date of
this audit report is in accordance with section 123 of the Act.
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vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data when
using certain access rights, as stated in note 44 (x) to the financial statements. Further, during
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with in respect of the accounting software where audit trail has been enabled.

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

(Bouset===

per Pkitesh Maheshwari
Partne

Membership Number: 118746
UDIN: 24118746BKFZVR8851
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: September 16, 2024
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12th Floor, The Ruby

29 Senapati Bapat Marg
Dadar (West)

Mumbai - 400 028, India

Tel

1491 22 6819 8000

Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited (“the Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and

belief, we state that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a) (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles

assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the

year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(¢) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in note 11
and note 12 to the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and investment
property are held in the name of the Company except certain immovable properties as indicated

below:
Description | Gross Held in Whether | Period held | Reason for not being
of Property | carrying | name of promoter | — indicate held in the name of
value , director | range, Company
(Rs. in or their where
Lacs) relative appropriate
or
employee
Investment 16.39 Jawahar Yes 27-01-2004 | Property is registered
Property Hariram in the name of partners
Hemrajani representing the
& Kamlesh erstwhile partnership
Arjun firm M/s Glass Wall
Choudhari Systems.
Investment 16.36 Glass Wall | No 21-04-2004 | Property is registered
Property Systems in the name of
Investment 95.42 Glass Wall | No 02-03-2009 | erstwhile partnership
Property Systems firm Glass Wall
Investment 135.21 Glass Wall | No 20-02-2008 | Systems.
Property Systems
Investment 124.92 Glass Wall | No 20-02-2008
Property Systems

SRBC&COLLP aLimited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4318
22, Camac Street, Block "B, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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(i)

Title deeds of immovable properties amounting to Rs. 3,182.61 lakhs are pledged with the banks
and their title deeds are not available with the Company. The same has not been independently
confirmed by the bank and hence we are unable to comment on the same.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during
the year ended March 31, 2024.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year except for
inventories lying with third parties. In our opinion, the frequency of verification by the
management is reasonable and the coverage and procedure for such verification is appropriate.
Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them as at March 31, 2024 and no
discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations. Discrepancies of 10% or more n
aggregate for cach class of inventory were not noticed in such physical verification.
(b) As disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal
course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company
with such banks are not in agreement with the unaudited books of accounts of the Company and
the details are as follows:
Value per books of [Value per quarterly
Quarter Ended account Rs. in return/ Difference Rs.
Lakhs statement Rs. in Lakhs
in Lakhs

Inventory

30 June 2023 2,792.18 2,728.78 63.40
30 September 2023 4,300.04 4,246.17 53.87
31 December 2023 3,215.43 3,407.08 (191.65)
31 March 2024 2,918.24 2,898.73 19.51
Mobilisation Advance

30 June 2023 6,808.52 6,818.02 (9.50)
30 September 2023 5,843.10 5,901.76 (58.66)
31 March 2024 4,554.70 4,355.18 199.52
Trade Receivables (including

Retention)

30 June 2023 7,788.25 7,793.62 (5.37)
30 September 2023 7,195.65 7,205.25 (9.60)
31 December 2023 8,088.60 8,253.84 (165.24)
31 March 2024 8,720.13 8,723.78 (3.65)
Uncertified Work In Progress

31 December 2023 2,054.59 2,138.71 (84.12)
31 March 2024 1374.64 1070.02 304.62
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(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The Company do not have sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from financial institutions during the year on the basis of security of current assets of
the Company.

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided loans, advances in the nature
of loans, stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c),
3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable. Investments in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the
Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, related to the construction activities, and are of the opinion that prima
facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however,
made a detailed examination of the same.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, duty of custom, cess and other statutory dues have not generally been
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though the delays in deposit have not been
serious.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, undisputed dues in respect of provident fund dues which were outstanding, at
the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable, are as
follows:
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Statement of Arrears of Statutory Dues Outstanding for More than Six Months

Name of | Natureof | Amount | Period to which Due Date Date of
the the Dues (Rs.) the amount Payment
Statute relates
18,141 Apr-22 | 15-May-22
17,583 May-22 15-Jun-22
14,667 Jun-22 15-Jul-22
16,010 Jul-22 | 15-Aug-22
15,367 Aug-22 15-Sep-22
14,135 Sep-22 15-Oct-22
The Sacelfsacs 12,754 Oct-22 15-Nov-22
Emplf)yf:es Prfvigent 15,935 Nov-22 15-Dec-22 .
Provident Fund 15,886 Dec-22 15-Jan-23 | Outstanding
Fur}lgsgct, Contribution | 15,988 Jan-23 | 15-Feb-23
14,279 Feb-23 15-Mar-23
10,770 Mar-23 15-Apr-23
14,301 Apr-23 | 15-May-23
14,884 May-23 15-Jun-23
15,196 Jun-23 15-Jul-23
17,554 Jul-23 | 15-Aug-23
19,591 Aug-23 15-Sep-23

(b) The dues of income-tax, sales-tax, value added tax, and other statutory dues have not been
deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Amount | Period to
R T— Nature of the (Rs.in | which the | Forum where the
m e dues Lakhs) amount | dispute is pending
(*) relates
Maharashtra Value Value Added 2.101.80 2005-06 to | Maharashtra Sales Tax
Added Tax Act, 2002 Tax Demand e 2014-15 Tribunal
Maharashtra Value Value Added Maharashtra Sales Tax
Added Tax Act, 2002 Tax Demand 367.59 | 2015-16  |.pgpima)
Maharashtra Value Value Added Maharashtra Sales Tax
Added Tax Act, 2002 Tax Demand 4pl6 | 201517 Tribunal
Maharashtra Value Value Added 8.58 2017-18 Mabharashtra Sales Tax
Added Tax Act, 2002 Tax Demand ) Tribunal
Maharashtra Value Central Sales Tax 14.88 2014-15 Mabharashtra Sales Tax
Added Tax Act, 2002 Demand ) Tribunal
Mabharashtra Value Central Sales Tax Maharashtra Sales Tax
Added Tax Act, 2002 Demand 139.80 | 2015-16 | 1y unal
Income Tax Act, Income Tax
1961 Pematid 16.10 | 2017-18 CIT Appeals

* Net of Duty paid under protest.
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(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(¢) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its joint
venture.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its joint
venture. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer
(including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully
or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. Further, as represented to us by the
management, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by cost auditor in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.
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(xi1)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable
to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order
insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and immediately preceding financial
year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xix)

(xx)

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

(pei=—

per Pr?‘esh Maheshwari

Partner

Membership Number: 118746
UDIN: 24118746BKFZVR8851
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: September 16, 2024
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the financial statements of Glass
Wall Systems (India) Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Glass Wall Systems
(India) Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards
on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
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(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAIL

For SRBC & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per P\-itesh Maheshwari
Partner

Membership Number: 118746
UDIN: 24118746BKFZVR8851
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: September 16, 2024




Glass Wali Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN: U74999MH2010PTC207187
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Borrowings
Long-Term Provisions

Current Liabilities

Short-Term Borrowings

Trade Payables

-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Other Current Liabilities

Short-Term Provisions

TOTAL

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment
Intangible Assets

Non-Current Investments

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Long Term Loans and Advances

Trade Receivables
Other Non-Current Assets

Current Assets

Current Investments
Inventories

Trade Receivables

Cash and Bank Balances

Short Term Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets

TOTAL
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Note No.

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

11
11

12
16
17
18
19
20

2

% in Lakhs ? in Lakhs
1,943.82 1,943.82
9,356.10 7,469.16

11,299.92 9,412.98
840.50 998.48
277.22 248.51

1,117.72 1,246.99
1,007.85 3,702.30
940.67 374.71
2,916.39 4,593.53
8,096.64 9,734.58
120.86 94,21
13,082.41 18,499.33
25,500.05 29,159.30
4,503.71 4,586.86
14.89 29.14
123.00 211.58
858.13 858.13
545.64 2,155.90
2,548.65 1,470.55 |
41.84 37.45
8,635.86 9,349.61
289.59 1,199.05
2,743.24 2,132.16
7,249.56 8,620.80
3,016.36 2,266.80
1,698.05 1,845.37
1,867.39 3,745.51
16,864.19 19,809.69
25,500.05 29,159.30

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
P

per Piritesh Maheshwari
Partn
Membership Number: 118746

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16 September,2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited

W g

Eshan J. Hemrajani

Jawahar H. Hemrajani
Director
Din:-00740482

Shruti Waghela
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16 September,2024

irector
DIN:-02987292

vevele taaat Rad

Vivek Baid

Chief Financial Officer




Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN: U74999MH2010PTC207187

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

Income

Revenue From Operations
Other Income

Total Income

Expenses

Cost of Raw Materials and Components Consumed
Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Profit before exceptional items and Tax
Exceptional items (Refer Note 14)
Profit Before Tax

Tax Expenses:
Current Tax
Pertaining to profit for the current period
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods
Deferred Tax
Total Tax Expense

Profit for the year

Earning Per Equity Share [nominal value of share Z10
(31 March 2023: 210)]

Equity Shares

Basic

Diluted

Equity Shares (Class B)

Basic

Diluted

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Note No. % in Lakhs % in Lakhs

21 27,753.80 23,900.07
22 1,050.89 321.54
28,804.69 24,221.61
23 14,699.31 14,814.48
24 2,552.99 2,495.82
25 825.67 824.79
11 305.22 305.48
26 6,724.38 5,760.49
25,107.57 24,201.06
3,697.12 20.55

1,618.86 -
2,078.26 20.55

(28.68) %

13 s ”

(28.68) 2
2,106.94 20.55

a7,
10.27 (0.46)
10.27 {0.46)
12.74 2.01
12.74 2.01
2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For SRBC & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

%

per Pyitesh Maheshwari
Partn:
Membership Number: 118746

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16 September,2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited

Jawahar H. Hemrajani

Director
Din:-00740482

Shruti Waghela
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16 September,2024

AN EISD

Eshan J. Hemrajani
Director
DIN:-02987292

Vevete hemed o/

Vivek Baid
Chief Financial Officer




Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN: U74999MH2010PTC207187
Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

¥ in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 2,078.26 20.55
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 305.22 305.48
Liabilities no longer required written back 55.19 -
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 703.86 ]
Provision for advance for property (Refer Note 14) 1,618.86 =
Provision for Doubtful Advances 88.05 -
Bad debts written off 36.84 -
(Profit) on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment - (3.69)
Loss on discard of Property,Plant & Equipment 0.85 -
Provision of diminution in value of Investment - (0.50)
(Profit) on sale of investment properties (net) (268.99) (4.03)
Bad Debts earlier written off now written back (1.04) :
Unrealised exchange difference 167.95 201.83
Dividend Received (1.35) {0.90)
Finance Cost 825.67 824.79
Interest Income (180.44) (90.13)
Operating loss before working capital changes 5,428.93 1,253.40
Movements in working capital :
(Decrease) In Trade Payables (1,111.18) (606.92)
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 55.37 (107.78)
Increase / (Decrease) In Other Liabilities (2,015.57) 2,126.08
(Increase) in Trade Receivables (407.95) (1,323.74)
(Increase) In Inventories (611.08) (109.16)
Decrease in Loans And Advances 120.32 1,365.18
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets 1,816.05 (1,136.75)
Cash generated from operations 3,274.89 1,460.31
Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refunds) 120.05 419.86
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 3,394.94 1,880.17
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangible Assets including (279.16) (280.44)
Capital Work-In-Progress and Capital Advances
Interest Received 177.72 124.48
Dividends Received 1.35 0.90
Redemption/(Investment) in Bank Deposits (net) (71.62) 225.13
Investment in Investment property - (838.31)
Proceeds from sale of Investment property 1,248.51 1,080.00
Net cash flow from investing activities (B) 1,076.80 311.76
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of Long-Term Borrowings (106.63) -
Proceeds from/(Repayment of) Short-Term Borrowings (2,745.79) (1,259.48)
Dividend paid on Class B equity shares (110.00) (110.00)
Interest Paid (831.78) (824.97)
Net cash flow (used in) financing activities (C) (3,794.20) (2,194.45)
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents (A + B + C) 677.54 (2.52)
Cash And Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 9.94 12.46
Cash And Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 687.48 9.94
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 2.06 2.65
With banks
-On current accounts 25.42 7.29
-Deposit with original maturity of less than three months 660.00 -
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 18) 687.48 9.94

Summary of Significant accounting policies (Refer Note 2)

Cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect method" as set out in the Accounting Standard (AS)-3 "Cash Flow Statements’.

Subsequent to vear end, Interim dividend amounting to ¥ 110.00 lakhs has been paid pursuant to the declaration of interim dividend by the
Board of Directors on 11 July, 2024. The Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2024 does not consider the impact of such interim
dividend.

Figures in bracket represents cash outflow.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
all Systems {In&ia] Private Limited

. \)J\)‘% 57\(\%

Eshan J. Hemrajani
Director
DIN:-02987292

Vivek Baid
Chief Financial Officer

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Nun}ber: 324982E/E300003

Jawahar H. Hemrajani
Director
Din:-00740482

)
Shruti Waghela
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16 September,2024

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16 September,2024
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Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN: U74999MH2010PTC207187
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Corporate Information

Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited, a Company registered under Companies Act, 1956, is a leading fagade engineering company in India
engaged in providing complete solutions in architectural facade and glass wall curtains. The Registered office of the Company is situated at 503-504,
5th floor, A-Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East) Mumbai 400013, Maharashtra having CIN
Number U74999MH2010PTC207187 and having manufacturing unit at Vilebhagad.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 are approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 16 September,2024.
Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP).
The company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of
the Companies Act 2013 read together with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 and presentation requirements of Division I of
Schedule IIl to the Companies Act, 2013.The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year.
Significant Accounting Policies

Current vs non current

The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it
is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting vear.
Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized on the basis of percentage completion method. The percentage of completion is determined by comparing the costs incurred to
date with the total costs estimated to be incurred on the contract. The total costs likely to be incurred on a contract are as estimated by the
management. Projects which are completed less than 10% of the total estimated project cost, revenue is recognised to the extent of actual cost
incurred.

Provisions for entire foreseeable losses, if any, on contracts are made irrespective of the percentage of work completed.

Contract revenue earned in excess of billing has been reflected as “Unbilled Revenue” under “Other current assets ” and billing in excess of contract
revenue has been reflected as “Billing in Excess of Contract Revenue” under “Other current liabilities” in the balance sheet.

Revenue from services is recognised prorata over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered.

Export incentive:

Export incentive are accounted in the year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.
Interest:

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate.

Dividends:
Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date.

Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its location and working condition for its intended use.

o




Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN: U74999MH2010PTC207187
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

e) Depreciation
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment except building is calculated on a written down value basis using the rates arrived at based on the

useful lives estimated by the management. For Building depreciation is calculated on straight line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful
lives estimated by the management.

The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its Property, Plant & Equipment.

Assets Useful lives estimated by the management (years)
Buildings 60
Factory Buildings 10 to 30
Plant & Equipments 5to 15
Furniture & Fixtures 3to 10
Electrical Fittings 10
Office Equipments - Computers 3
Office Equipments - Others 3to5
Vehicles 8to 10

Based on technical estimates, the useful lives of certain Plant & Equipments and Furniture & Fixtures are lower than those indicated in Schedule II
to Companies Act, 2013

Assets Useful lives estimated by the management (years)
Plant & Equipments 5and 10
Furniture & Fixtures 3and 5

Leasehold land is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of lease i.e. 90 to 95 years

f) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised over
estimated useful life of 3 to 5 years using straight-line method.

g) Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's or cash generating unit's (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assumptions of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are
taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

h) Inventories
Raw materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using weighted average cost basis. Cost includes cost of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realizable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

i) Investments
Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investments are made, are
classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments.

Current investments are carried in the financial statement at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term
investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the
investments.

Investment in property
An investment in land or buildings, which is not intended to be occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, is classified as
investment property. Investment properties are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the investment property
to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Depreciation on building component of investment property is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rate arrived at based on the useful life
estimated by the management. The company based on technical assessment from the professionals and management estimate depreciates the
investment property over the estimated useful life of 60 years.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrving amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit
and loss.




Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN: U74999MH2010PTC207187
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

[

Foreign Exchange Translations

(1) Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applving to the foreign current amount, the exchange rate between the
reporting currency and foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

(ii) Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in
a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction and non monetary items which are carried at fair value or other
similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

(iii) Exchange Differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company's monetary items at rates different from those at which

they were initially reported during the vear, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expense in the yvear in which
they arise.

k) Leases
Where the Company is the lessee
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the leased items are classified as operating leases.
Lease payments under an operating lease, are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Where the Company is the lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases.
Lease income on an operating lease is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1) Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

m) Employee benefits
(i) Defined Contribution Plans
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution scheme and the
contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the yvear when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other
obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective fund.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan

The Company operates defined benefit plan for its employees, viz, Gratuity. The Company's liability towards these benefits is determined on the basis
of actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains/losses are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur

(iii) Compensated absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short
term emplovee benefits. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated as on the reporting date. The Company presents the entire compensated absences as a short term
provisions, since employee has an unconditional right to avail the leave at any time during the year.

n) Taxations
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income Tax Act-1961 (as amended) enacted in India

Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the vear and the
reversal of timing differences of earlier vears. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet reporting date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where the Company has unabsorbed
depreciation or carry forward tax losses, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they
can be realised against future taxable profits.

At each balance sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent
that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such Deferred Tax Assets can be realized.

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The Company writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain,
as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable rights exists to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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o) Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the vear attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equitv shares outstanding during the vear.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the vear attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the vear are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand with an original maturity of three months or
less.

q) Segment reporting
The company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial
statements of the company as a whole. The Company is primarily engaged in a single business segment of "Construction Activities" and accordingly,
this is the only primary reportable segment. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the
company operate.

r) Government grants and subsidies
Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that (i) the company will comply with the conditions
attached to them, and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be received. When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognized as income on a systematic
basis in the statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate.
Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as deferred income and released to income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the
related asset.

Where the company receives non-monetary grants, the asset is accounted for on the basis of its acquisition cost. [n case a non-monetary asset is
given free of cost, it is recognized at a nominal value.

Government grants of the nature of promoters’ contribution are credited to capital reserve and treated as a part of the shareholders’ funds.

s) Provisions and contingencies
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are
determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events bevond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statement.
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3 Share Capital

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

¥ in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Authorised Shares
215,45,405 (31 March 2023 - 215.45,405) Equity Shares of 210/- each 2,154.54 2,154.54
44,54,595 (31 March 2023 - 44,54,595) Class B Equity Shares of ¥10/- each 445.46 445.46
2,600.00 2,600.00
Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid Up Shares
1,49,83,640 (31 March 2023 - 1,49,83,640) Equity Shares of 210/-each 1,498.36 1,498.30
44,54,595 (31 March 2023 - 44,54,595) Class B Equity Shares of 210/-each 445.46 445.46
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 1,943.82 1,943.82
a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
(i) Equity Shares
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of shares % in Lakhs No. of shares T in Lakhs
At the beginning of the period 1,49,83,640 1,498.36 1,49,83,640 1,498.36
Outstanding at the end of the period 1,49,83,640 1,498.36 1,49,83,640 1,498.36

(ii) Equity Shares (Class B)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

No. of shares ¥ in Lakhs No. of shares 2 in Lakhs
At the beginning of the period 44,54,595 445 .46 44 54,595 445.46
Outstanding at the end of the period 44,54,595 445.46 44,54,595 445.46

b) Terms/Rights attached to the Equity Shares

The Company has two class of equity shares i.e. ordinary equity shares and Class B equity shares, both having par value of 10 per share. Each holder of ordinary equity
shares and Class B equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Class B equity shares shall get additional coupon @ 2% per annum on subscription amount from the date of issuance of Class B equity shares until 12 June 2024 or until
such time as the holder of Class B equity share may decide, whichever is earlier.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of ordinary equity shares and Class B equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the ordinary equity shareholders and Class B

equity shareholders.

¢) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

d

e

Name of the Shareholders

31 March 2024

No. of shares

% Holding in the

31 March 2023

No. of shares

% Holding in the

class class
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid
Amit J. Hemrajani 10,25,046 6.84% 10,25,046 6.84%
Vistra ITCL (India) Limited* (Trustee of Business Excellence Trust Il - India Business 10,52,904 7.03% 10,52,904 7.03%
Excellence Fund II)
*Formerly known as IL&FS Trust Company Ltd
Eshan J Hemrajani jointly with Dikshita Achanna Hemrajani # 20,01,495 13.36% 20,01,495 13.36%
Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari 22,11,099 14.76% 22,11,099 14.76%
Mr. Jawahar H. Hemrajani 80,52,275 53.74% 80,52,275 53.74%
Class B Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid
Vistra ITCL (India) Limited* (Trustee of Business Excellence Trust I1 - India Business 6,47,941 14.55% 6,47,941 14.55%
Excellence Fund II)
*Formerly known as IL&FS Trust Company Ltd
India Business Excellence Fund - [1A 38,006,654 85.45% 38,006,654 85.45%

# Out of total shares, 971,912 jointly held with Ms. Dikshita Achanna Hemrajani

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above

shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

) Proposed dividend:

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

in Lakhs Z in Lakhs
The board proposed dividend on class B equity shares after the balance sheet date
Proposed dividend on Class B equity shares for the vear ended on 31 March 2024: 2 Nil per share (31 - 110.00
March 2023: 2 2 per share)
%) 110.00

Details of shares held by promoters

No. of shares

No. of shares at

duri
?t tE:e Change df“ing the the end of the % of Total Shares % change .unng
beginning of period - the peried
® period
the period
As at 31 March 2024
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid
Ms. Sunita K. Choudhari - - - 0.00% 0.00%
Ms. Vinne J. Hemrajani 73,871 - 73,871 0.38% 0.00%
Mr.Amit J, Hemrajani 10,253,046 - 10,25,046 5.27% 0.00%
Mr.Eshan J. Hemrajani # 20,01,495 - 20,01,495 10.30% 0.00%
Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari 22,11,099 - 22,11,099 11.37% 0.00%
Mr. Jawahar H. Heinrajani 80,352,275 80,52,275 41.42%, %, 0.00%
Note: F/4

4 Out of total shares, 971,912 jointly held with Ms. Dikshita Achanna Hemrajani
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No. of shares Change during the No. of shares at % of Total Shares % change during

at the period the end of the the period
beginning of period
the period

As at 31 March 2023

Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid

Ms. Sunita K. Choudhari 1,84,676 (1,84,676) - 0.00% -0.95%
Ms. Vinne J. Hemrajani 73,871 - 73,871 0.38% 0.00%
Mr.Amit J. Hemrajani 53,134 9,71,912 10,25,046 5.27% 5.00%
Mr.Eshan J. Hemrajani # 10,29,583 9,71,912 20,01,495 10.30% 5.00%
Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari 55,25,305 (33,14,2006) 22,11,099 11.37% -17.05%
Mr. Jawahar H. Hemrajani 64,97,217 15,55,058 80,52,275 41.42% 8.00%

Note:
# Out of total shares, 971,912 jointly held with Ms. Dikshita Achanna Hemrajani

The Company has not allotted any equity shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, bonus shares, nor have any shares been bought back
during a period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date. Subsequent to the year end, the Board of Directors approved the proposal for buy-back of
42,53,910 fully paid up equity shares (Refer Note 42).

Reserves and Surplus

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

¥ in Lakhs T in Lakhs
Securities Premium
Balance as per the last financial statements 5,054.54 5,054.54
Closing Balance 5,054.54 5,054.54
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as per last financial statements 2,414.62 2,504.07
Profit for the year 2,106.94 20.55
Less: Appropriations
Dividend on Class B equity share (Amount per share 2 2 (31 March 2023: 2 2)) (110.00) (110.00)
Interim Dividend on Class B equity share (Amount per share 2 2 (31 March 2023: Nil)) (Refer Note 42 (iii)(a)) (110.00) <
Net surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss 4,301.56 2,414.62
Total Reserves and Surplus 9,356.10 7,469.16
Lung-Term Borrowings
Non-current portion Current maturities
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
? in Lakhs T in Lakhs ? in Lakhs 2 in Lakhs
Secured:
Term Loan from Financial Institutions 840.50 998.48 157.59 106.24
Amount disclosed under the head “short-term borrowings” (Refer Note 7) - - (157.59) (106.24)
840.50 998.48 - -

The Company has taken Housing Loan of ¥ 1,104.72 Lakhs from PNB Housing Finance Limited at MCLR plus margin (currently rate of interest is 9.10% p.a.) to finance
the purchase of investment properties of which ¥ 998.09 Lakhs (31 March 2023: ? 1,104.72 Lakhs) is outstanding .Thc loan is repayable in 84 equal monthly instalments
starting from May 2023. This loan is secured by first and exclusive charge on property offered as collateral security which shall have clear, marketable and unencumbered
title on the investment properties purchased. During the current year ended 31 March 2024, insolvency petition was filed against the developer of the proposed investment
property which has been admitted by NCLT in February 2024. This event has not changed the terms arrangement of payment with financial institutions.

Further, Management has fully provided advance given for such property (Refer Note 14) and disclosed under exceptional Items in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
Year Ended 31 March 2024.

Long-Term Provisions

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
T in Lakhs % in Lakhs

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 39) 277.22 248.51

277.22 248.51
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7 Short-Term Borrowings

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

% in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Secured:
Cash Credit from Banks (Refer note i to iii below) 850.26 3,596.06
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer Note 5) 157.59 106.24
1,007.85 3,702.30

(i) The Company has availed overdraft facility from Bank of India at Marginal Cost of Lending Rate ("MCLR") plus margin (currently rate of interest is 13.55%). The cash
credit facility is for financing the working capital requirement and is repayable on demand. As at 31 March 2024, the Company has utilised ¥ 119.75 Lakhs (31 March
2023: ¥ 512.24 Lakhs) under this facility.

(ii) The Company has availed overdraft facility from TJSB Sahakari Bank Limited at an interest rate of 5.50% below Prime Lending Rate (PLR) (currently rate of interest is

12.35%]. The cash credit facility is for financing the working capital requirement and is repayable on demand. As at 31 March 2024, the Company has utilised ¥ 730.51
Lakhs (31 March 2023: ¥ 2787.06 Lakhs) under this facility.

(iii) The Company has availed overdraft facility from Indusind Bank at MCLR rate plus margin (currently rate of interest is 10.17%)}. The cash credit facility is for financing
the working capital requirement and is repayable on demand. As at 31 March 2024, the Company has utilised 2 Nil (31 March 2023: ¥296.75 Lakhs| under this facility.

All the facilities in note (i) to (iii) above, are secured against inventory, book debts and has first pari passu charge on the immovable and movable assets of the Company.
Further, these facilities are also secured by way of corporate guarantee of GWS Engineers and Fabricators Private Limited & GWS Fabricators Private Limited and personal
guarantee of Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani, Mr. Kamlesh Choudhari and Mrs. Sunita Choudhari.

(iv) The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with the banks according to the sanctioned working capital facilities which are in agreement with books of
accounts other than those mentioned below:

For the year 01-April-2023 to 31-March-2024

Amount as per

Amount as per quarterly — f'
Name of the bank Quarter Ended Particulars of security provided books of accounts returns/ difference Reason for variance

¥ in Lakhs statements
% in Lakhs

30-Jun-2023 Trade Receivables (including Retention) 7,788.25 7,793.62 (5.37) Refer Note-1

30-Jun-2023 Mobilisation Advance 6,808.52 6,818.02 {9.50) Refer Note-5

30-Jun-2023 Inventory 2,792.18 2,728.78 63.40 Refer Note-8

30-Sep-2023 Trade Receivables (including Retention) 7,195.65 7,205.25 (9.60) Refer Note-2

30-Sep-2023 Mobilisation Advance 5,843.10 5,901.76 (58.66) Refer Note-6

30-Sep-2023 Inventory 4,300.04 4,246.17 = 53.87 Refer Note-8

RonsaunT Rinateo) 31-Dec-2023 Trade Receivables (including Retention) 8,088.60 8,253.84 (165.24)  Refer Note-3

31-Dec-2023 Inventory 3,215.43 3,407.08 (191.65) Refer Note-9

31-Dec-2023 Uncertified Work In Progress 2,054.59 2,138.71 (84.12) Refer Note-10

31-Mar-2024 Trade Receivables (including Retention) 8,720.13 8,723.78 (3.65) Refer Note-4

31-Mar-2024 Mobilisation Advance 4,554.70 4,355.18 199.52 Refer Note-7

31-Mar-2024 Inventory 2,918.24 2,898.73 19.51 Refer Note-8

31-Mar-2024 Uncertified Work In Progress 1,374.64 1,070.02 304.62 Refer Note-10

# Consortium Finance includes Bank of India (Lead Bank), TJSB Sahakari Bank Limited, Standard Chartered Bank and Indusind Bank

Note 1 - Variance in Trade receivables is due to TDS receivable & Retention entries which was posted after submission of Drawing Power Statement. TDS entreis were
reconciled subsequently.

Note 2 - Variance in Trade receivables is due to Retention entries which was posted after submission of Drawing Power Statement.

Note 3 - Variance in Trade receivables is due to TDS receivable & exchange difference on foreign receivables entries which was posted after submission of Drawing Power
Statement. TDS entries were reconciled subsequently.

Note 4 - Variance in Trade receivables is due to Retention and debit note entries which was posted after submission of Drawing Power Statement.
Note 5 - Variance in Mobilisation Advance is due to Debtors due More than 150 Days have excluded for computing Drawing Power.
Note 6 - Variance in Mobilisation Advance is due to Debtors due More than 150 Days have excluded for computing Drawing Power and rectification entries.

Note 7 - Variance in Mobilisation Advance is due to exchange difference on foreign reccivables entries which was posted after submission of Drawing Power Statement..
Note 8 - Variance in Inventory is due to Stock in transit / Quality hold posted after submission of Drawing Power Statement.

Note 9 - Variance in Inventory is due to Stock in transit / Quality hold considered in Drawing Power Statement.
Note 10 - Variance in Uncertified Work In Progress is due to projects which are not moving, Contract Value reduced to milestone certified by Client.
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For the year 01-April-2022 to 31-March-2023

Amount as per

Amount as per quarterly R £
Name of the bank Quarter Ended Particulars of security provided books of accounts returns/ Variance eul;on or
2 wvariance
T in Lakhs statements
T in Lakhs
30-Jun-2022 Trade Receivables (including Retention) 6,684.15 6,668.42 15.73 Refer Note-1
30-Jun-2022 Mobilisation Advance 4,835.85 4,834.52 1.33 Refer Note-2
30-Jun-2022 Inventory 3,423.33 3,428.48 (5.15) Refer Note-4
30-Jun-2022 Trade Payables (LC Creditors) 2,797.49 2,842.65 (45.16) Refer Note-5
30-Sep-2022 Trade Receivables (including Retention) 7,833.52 7,978.41 (144.89] Refer Note-1
30-Sep-2022 Mobilisation Advance 5,099.52 5,137.12 (37.60) Refer Note-2
Consottium Finance# 30-Sep-2022 Inventory 2,820.54 2,818.91 1.63 Refer Note-3
31-Dec-2022 Trade Receivables (including Retention) 6,649.28 6,645.92 3.36 Refer Note-1
31-Dec-2022 Mobilisation Advance 4,742.40 4,731.53 10.87 Refer Note-2
31-Dec-2022 Inventory 2,864.46 2,800.72 3.74 Refer Note-3
31-Dec-2022 Trade Payables (LC Creditors) 1,163.56 1,171.37 (7.81) Refer Note-5
31-Mar-2023 Trade Receivables (including Retention) 8,888.98 8,879.60 9.38 Refer Note-1
31-Mar-2023 Uncertified Work In Progress 3,626.22 3,047.70 578.52 Refer Note-6

# Consortium Finance includes Bank of India (Lead Bank), TJSB Sahakari Bank Limited, Standard Chartered Bank and Indusind Bank

Note 1 - Variance in Trade receivables is due to TDS receivable & Retention entries which was posted after submission of Drawing Power Statement. TDS entries were reconciled
subsequently.

Note 2 - Variance in Mobilisation Advance is due to Debtors due More than 150 Days have excluded for computing Drawing Power.

Note 3 - Variance in Inventory is due to Stock in transit / Quality hold posted after submission of Drawing Power Statement.

Note 4 - Variance in Inventory is due to Stock in transit / Quality hold considered in Drawing Power Statement.

Note 5 - Variance in Trade payable for excess Liability reported is due to oversight.

Note 6 - Variance in Uncertified Work In Progress is due to projects which are not moving, Contract Value reduced to milestone certified by Client.

Trade Payables

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

% in Lakhs ? in Lakhs
Trade Payable (Refer Note below)
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note 34) 940.67 374.71
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,916.39 4,593.53
3,857.06 4,968.24

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

This information as required to be disclosed under Micro and small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006, has been determined to the extent such parties have
been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

Trade Payables Agein

As at 31 March 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Unbilled Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Total outstanding dues - 240,65 684.67 15.35 = - 940.67
of micro enterprises
and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues - 1,098.98 1,296.61 217.43 59.92 18.35 2,691.29
of creditors other than

micro enterprises and

small enterprises

Disputed dues of micro = B S = = R
enterprises and small
enterprises

Disputed dues of - . - = « - -
creditors other than

micro enterprises and

small enterprises

Unbilied 225.10 - - - - - 22510
225.10 1,339.63 1,981.28 232.78 59.92 18.35 3,857.06_
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As at 31 March 2023

12

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Total outstanding dues - 374.71 - - 374.71
of micro enterprises
and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues - 33.14 3,584.71 239.78 143.92 25498 4,256.53
of creditors other than
micro enterprises and
small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro - - - - - =
enterprises and small
enterprises
Disputed dues of - - - - 54.61 54.61
creditors other than
micro enterprises and
small enterprises
Unbilled 282.39 - - - - - 282.39
282.39 33.14 3,959.42 239.78 143.92 309.59 4,968.24
Other Current Liabilities
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
¥ in Lakhs ?in Lakhs
Advance Received From Customers 4,675.13 6,707.06
Billing in Excess of Contract Revenue 2,951.58 1,962.17
Statutory Dues payable 306.55 215.08
Emplovee Dues payable 30.18 247.33
Advance against Sale of Flats 11.00 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 6.26 12.37
Interim Dividend payable 110.00 -
Liabilities for Capital Creditors 1.02 ]
Security Deposits payable 4.92 590.57
8,096.64 9,734.58
Short-Term Provisions
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
% in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note- 39) 83.08 70.75
Provision for Leave Benefits 37.78 23.46
120.86 94.21
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11 Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant & Equipment

Intangible Assets

Leasehold land  Building Plant & Furniture & Electrical Office Vehicles Total Computer Total
Machinery Fixtures Fittings equipment Software

Cost
At 1 April 2022 1,004.61 3,974.52 2,088.35 353.09 49.67 326.07 121.83 7,918.14 253.35 253.35
Additions - 25.06 188.22 1.06 45.35 4.09 - 263.78 - -
Disposals - - = - - - (29.00) {29.00) -
Reclassified to - (403.86) - - - - - (403.86) - -
Investment property*
At 31 March 2023 1,004.61 3,595.72 2,276.57 354.15 95.02 330.16 92.83 7,749.06 253.35 253.35
Additions - - 129.89 7.08 - 32,98 12.79 182.74 6.43 6.43
Disposals - - - - - - (16.94) (16.94) - -
Other adjustments = = - - - - - - - -
At 31 March 2024 1,004.61 3,595.72 2,406.46 361.23 95.02 363.14 88.68 7,914.86 259.78 259.78
Depreciation
At 1 April 2022 72.75 725.80 1,613.46 303.98 0.25 294,58 113.97 3,124.79 197.63 197.63
Charge for the year 10.80 77.54 116.87 12.53 22.48 13.49 0.80 254.51 26.66 26.66
Disposals - - - - ¥ - (26.59) (26.59) - -
Reclassified to - (190.83) - = : - - (190.83) - -
Investment property*
Other adjustments (0.01) (0.20) 0.43 0.04 - 0.08 0.01 0.35 (0.08) (0.08)
At 31 March 2023 83.54 612.31 1,730.76 316.55 22.73 308.15 88.19 3,162.23 224.21 224.21
Charge for the year 10.80 78.36 128.89 10.92 18.95 13.74 3.36 265.02 20.68 20.68
Disposals - - - - - = (16.10) (16.10) - -
At 31 March 2024 94.34 690.67 1,859.65 327.47 41.68 321.89 75.45 3,411.15 244.89 244.89
Net Block
At 31 March 2023 921.07 2,983.41 545.81 37.60 72.29 22.01 4.64 4,586.83 29.14 29.14
At 31 March 2024 910.27 2,905.05 546.81 33.76 53.34 41.25 13.23 4,503.71 14.89 14.89
Notes

* During the previous year opening Gross block of Building aggregating to ? 127.35 Lakhs were classified to Current Investment and 2 276.51 Lakhs were classified to Non -

Current Investment

# During the previous year opening Accumulated Depreciation of Building aggregating to  41.06 Lakhs were classified to Current Investment and 2 149.76 Lakhs were classified

to Non - Current Investment

## Depreciation for the previous year of Building aggregating to ¥ 2.02 Lakhs were classified to Current Investment and 2 4.38 Lakhs were classified to Non - Current Investment

Depreciation and amortization expense
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

2 in Lakhs T in Lakhs
Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment 265.02 254.51
Amortization of intangible assets 20.68 26.66
Depreciation of investment property (Refer Note 12) 19.52 24.31

305.22 305.48
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Investments
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
in Lakhs 2 in Lakhs
Current
Investment property held for sale (valued at lower of cost less accumulated depreciation and fair value)
(Refer Note Celow)
Cost of building 1,254.55 1,127.20
Add: Reclassification of Property, Plant & Equipment* - 127.35
Less : Deduction for the year on Investment Property (1,000.00) >
Add: Reclassification from Non-current Investment*** 111.78 -
366.33 1,254.55
Less:
Opening Accumulated depreciation on Investment Property / Property, Plant & Equipment ** (55.50) (53.70)
Add : Depreciation for the year on Investment Property / Reclassified Property, Plant & Equipment ** (13.29) (18.08)
Less : Deduction for the year on Investment Property 21.48 16.28
Add: Reclassification from Non-current Investment*** (29.43) -
(76.74) (55.50)
Net block 289.59 1,199.05
Total Current investments 289.59 1,199.05

* During the previous year Plant Property & Equipment aggregating to 2 127.35 Lakhs were classified to Current Investment.

“* Opening Accumulated Depreciation for the previous yvear includes Depreciation aggregating to 2 41.06 Lakhs on Reclassified Plant Property and Equipment and Depreciation

for the previous vear includes Depreciation aggregating to 2 2.02 Lakhs on reclassified Plant Property and Equipment.

#+ During the year Investment Property aggregating to cost of 2 111,78 Lakhs and accumulated depreciation of 2 29.43 Lakhs have been reclassified from non-current

investment to current investment.

Non current

Trade Investments
Unquoted Investment in Equity Instruments (at Cost)

9,999 (31 March 2023: 9,999} Equity shares of 2 50 each fully paid up in TJSB Sahakari Bank Limited
Nil (31 March 2023: 5,000) Equity shares of 2 10 each fully paid up in Indus Fagade Private Limited*
Less:-Provision for diminution in value of investment of Indus Fagade Private Limited

Investment property (at cost less accumulated depreciation) (Refer Note Below)
Cost of building

Add: Reclassificatior: of Property, Plant & Equipment #

Less: Reciassified to Current Investment

Less:
Opening Accumuiated depreciation on Investment Property / Property, Plant & Equipment ##

Add : Depreciation for the year on Investment Property / Reclassified Property, Plant & Equipment ##
Less: Reclassified to Current investment

Net block
Total Non Current investments

Total investments

# During the previous year Plant Property & Equipment aggregating to  276.51 Lakhs were classified to Non - Current Investment

5.00 5.00
2 0.50
- (0.50)
5.00 5.00
388.20 111.78
- 276.51
{111.78) :
276.51 388.29
(181.71) (175.47)
(6.23) (6.24)
29.43 -
(158.51) (181.71)
118.00 206.58
123.00 211.58
412.59 1,410.63

## Opening Accumulated Depreciation for the previous year includes Depreciation aggregating to ¥ 149.76 Lakhs on Reclassified Plant Property and Equipment and

Depreciation for the previous year includes Depreciation aggregating to 2 4.38 Lakhs on Reclassified Plant Property and Equipment.

* During the yvear,Indus Fagade Private Limited has been strike off w.e.f 30 December 2023.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Notes :

1. Current Investment (Previous year Non Current Investment) properties with a carrving amount of 2 82.35 Lakhs (31 March 2023: ? 84.22 Lakhs) are subject to first charge to
secure the Company’s cash credit loans.

2. Details of title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the Company:

Relevant line item in | Description of item| Gross carrying value | Title deeds held | Whether title deed Property held Reason for not

the Balance sheet of property (in lakhs) in the name of holder is a since which date | being held in the
promoter, director name of the
or relative of company

promoter /director
or employee of
promoter /director

Non-Current Flat-708, Gateway 16.39 Mr. Jawahar H. Yes 27-01-2004 Refer note**
Investments Plaza,Mumbai Hemrajani and
Mr. Kamlesh A.
Choudhari
Non-Current Flat-502, Raheja 16.36 Glass Wall Systems No 21-04-2004 Refer note***
Investments Greens CHS Ltd. at (erstwhile
Borivali-Mumbai partnership firm
converted into
Company)
Non-Current Flat 2101-Raheja 95.42 Glass Wall Systems No 02-03-2009 Refer note***
Investments Willows at (erstwhile
Kandivali, Mumbai partnership firm
converted into
Company)
Non-Current Nirmal office No. 135.21 Glass Wall Systems No 20-02-2008 Refer note***
Investments 718 at (erstwhile
Mulund,Mumbai partnership firm
converted into
Comnanid
Non-Current Nirmal office No. 124.92 Glass Wall Systems No 20-02-2008 Refer note***
Investments 719 at (erstwhile
Mulund,Mumbai partnership firm

converted into

Coamnans]

Note:

**The Assets represents Office premises at Gateway Plaza - Mumbai used by the Company since its Purchases in 2003-04. At the time of purchase of the said property,the
constitution of the business was Partnership Firm.The Company is formed by Conversion of Partnership Firm under Chapter IX of the Companies Act 1956 in the year 2010.
Under partnership and property Registration Act laws, Properties are not registered in the name of Partnerships and the same is registered in the name of the Partners only. The
property is registered in the name of Partners representing the erstwhile Partnership Firm M/s Glass Wall Systems. Property was acquired from the Funds of the company and
the said partners are still Shareholders and Directors of the company.

+=*The Assets represents Office premises used by the Company since its Purchases. At the time of purchase of the said properties,the constitution of the business was
Partnership Firm.The Company is formed by Conversion of Partnership Firm under Chapter IX of the Companies Act 1956 in the year 2010. The properties are registered in the
name of erstwhile Partnership Firm M/s Glass Wall Systems. As stated in section 575 of Companies Act, 1956, If the constitution of the partnership firm is changed into that of
a company by registering it under Chapter IX of the Companies Act 1956, there shall be statutory vesting of the title of all the property of the previous firm in the newly
incorporated company without any need for a separate convevance.

Defe d Tax Assets

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
T in Lakhs % in Lakhs

Deferred tax asset

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year but allowed for tax purposes 199.38 199.38
on payment basis

Carried forward capital loss 128.65 128.65
Carried forward Business Loss and unabsorbed depreciation 779.08 779.08
Gross deferred tax asset 1,107.11 1,107.11
Deferred tax liability

Property,plant & equipments and Intangible assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and 248.98 248.98

depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial reporting

Gross deferred tax liability 248.98 248.98
Net deferred tax Assets 858.13 858.13
Note:

During the current year, the Company has incurred taxable income of ¥ 4812.59 Lakhs (31 March 2023: taxable loss of ? 71.79 Lakhs) and has carried forward loss of 2
4231.46 Lakhs (31 March 2023: 2 8925.52 Lakhs) [Unabsorbed Business Loss of ¥ 3323.87 Lakhs (31 March 2023: 2 8146.67 Lakhs) and Unabsorbed Depreciation of ¥ 907.58
Lakhs (31 March 2023: ¥ 778.85 Lakhs]].

At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, It recognises unrecognised deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficier:t future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

In relation to the balance as at April 1 2023, the management basis assessment of virtual certainty and underlving assumptions, believe that the Company will be able to utilize
the DTA balance against future forecasted profits. Thus, ro provision is considered by the Company in relation to such DTA balances.
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31 March 2024

31 March 2023

{ in Lakhs ? in Lakhs
Unsecured and Considered Good
Capital Advances 91.03 "
Advance for Property 1,628.80 1,618.86
Less:- Provision for Impairment (1,618.86) -
101.03 1,618.86
Prepaid Expense 231 3.37
Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision For Taxation) 442.30 533.67
545.64 2,155.90

Advance for property includes property with a carrying amount of 2 1606.64 Lakhs (31 March 2023: ? 1606.64 Lakhs) against which insolvency petition was filed against

the developer of the proposed property which has been admitted by NCLT in February 2024

The Management has fully provided advance of ¥ 1618.86.64 Lakhs given for properties and disclosed under exceptional Items in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the

year ended 31 March 2024,

Other Non Current Assets

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

T in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Unsecured and Considered Good
Security Deposits 41.84 37.05
Fixed Deposits with remaining maturity more than 12 months . 0.40
41.84 37.45

Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

¥ in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Raw Materials (Net of provision of 2 175.00 Lakhs (31 March 2023: ? 175.00 Lakhs) 2,743.24 2,132.16
2,743.24 2,132.16

Trade Receivables

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Y in Lakhe ¥ in Lakhs

Non-Current

Unsecured, Considered Good

Retention Money 2,548.65 1,470.55
2,548.65 1,470.55

Current

Unsecured, Considered Good 7,249.56 8,620.80

(Including Retention Money ? 1450.32 Lakhs (31 March 2023:  2435.34 Lakhs)

Doubtful 703.80 -

Less:- Provision for doubtful receivables (703.86) -
7,249.56 8,620.80
9,798.21 10,091.35

Trade Receivables Ageing - Non-Current

As at 31 March 2024

Retention Money Not due

Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

‘Total

Undisputed Trade
Receivables -
considered good

2,548.65 -

Undisputed Trade =
Receivables -
considered doubtful

Disputed Trade “
receivables -
considered good

Disputed Trade
receivables -
considered doubtful

2,548.65

Total

2,548.65

2,548.65
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Retention Money Not due

Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

1.2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years ‘Total

Undisputed Trade
Receivables —
considered good
Undisputed Trade
Receivables -
considered doubtful
Disputed Trade <
receivables -

considered good

Disputed Trade -
receivables —

considered doubtful

1,470.55

1,470.55

Total 1,470.55

1,470.55

Trade Receivables Ageing - Current

As at 31 March 2024

Not due

Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 'Total

Undisputed Trade =
Receivables —
considered good

Undisputed Trade -
Receivables —
considered doubtful

Disputed Trade -
receivables -
considered good

Disputed Trade =
receivables —
considered doubtful

5,828.79 177.44

152.64 551.22

1,165.85 14.10 63.38 7,249.56

703.86

Total "

5,981.43 728.66

1,165.85 14.10 63.38 7,953.42

As at 31 March 2023

Hot due

Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 'Total

Undisputed Trade -
Receivables —
considered good

Undisputed Trade -
Receivables —
considered doubtful

Disputed Trade -
receivables -
considered good

Disputed Trade -
receivables —
considered doubtful

7,488.99 650.44

344.56 93.91 42.90 8,620.80

Total -

7,488.99 650.44

344.56 93.91 42.90 8,620.80
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Cash and Bank Balances
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
¥ in Lakhs ? in Lakhs
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 2.06 2.65
Balances with Banks
On current accounts 25.42 7.29
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 660.00 2
687.48 9.94
Other bank balances
Margin Money Deposits 2,328.44 2,256.80
Deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months - 0.40
Deposits with remaining maturity for less than 12 months 0.44 =
2,328.88 2,257.26
Less: Amount disclosed under non-current assets (Refer note 15) = (0.40)
2,328.88 2,256.86
3,016.36 2,266.80

Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of ¥1359.83 Lakhs (31 March 2023:  1,693.28 Lakhs) are subject to first charge to secure the Company’s cash credit
loans and ¥ 337.19 Lakhs (31 March 2023: % 563.98 Lakhs) against bank guarantee & Letter of Credit Facility by Banks.

Short Term Loans and Advances

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

¥ in Lakhs % in Lakhs

Unsecured, Considered Good

Loans and Advances to Employees 56.77 45.74

Advance to Suppliers 666.52 635.48

Balances with Government Authorities 943.29 1,111.71

Less:- Provision for doubtful receivables (28.05) -

Prepaid Expenses 59.52 52.44
1,698.05 1,845.37

Other Current Assets

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

¥ in Lakhs % in Lakhs

U d, C idered Good

Unbilled Revenue 1,580.83 3,626.22

Security Deposits 0.95 3.64

Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposit (Includes interest on margin money deposits of 2 Nil Lakhs (31 March 3.62 0.90

2023: 0.9 Lakhs)

Other Reccivables 341.99 114.75

Less:- Provision for doubtful receivables (60.00) -
1,867.39 3,745.51

Revenue from operations

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1 in Lakhs ? in Lakhs
Revenue from Construction Contracts 27,753.80 23,900.07
27,753.80 23,900.07

Other Income

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

¥ in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Interest income
-on Fixed Deposits 162.80 90.13
-on Income Tax Refund / Others 17.64 71.63
Scrap Sales 311.59 119.75
Bad Debts earlier written off now written back 1.04 -
Liabilities no longer required written back 55.19 %
Exchange Differences (net) 66.78 E
Profit on sale of Property,Plant & Equipment . 3.69
Profit on Sale of Investment Property 268.99 4.03
Rental Income [Refer note 40(B}] 13.78 0.25
Duty Drawback and Rebates Received 151.73 31.16
Dividend from Non Current Investment 1.35 0.90
1,050.89 321.54
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31 March 2024

31 March 2023

% in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs
Inventory at the beginning of the year 2,132.16 2,023.00
Add: Purchases 15,310.39 14,923.64
Less: Inventory at the end of the vear (2,743.24) (2,132.16)
14,699.31 14,814.48

24 Employee Benefits Expense

25

26

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

T in Lakhs 7 in Lakhs
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 2,279.24 2,308.96
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 74.09 78.21
Gratuity expense (Refer Note 39) 75.32 (2.82)
Staff Welfare Expenses 124.34 111.47
2,552.99 _&495.82

Finance Costs

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

2 in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs
Interest
-Cash Credit 480.96 507.56
-Term Loan 119.74 156.34
-Others 118.58 34.66
Bank and Other Financial Charges 79.01 77.26
Loan Processing Charges 27.38 48.97
825.67 824.79
Other Expenses
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{ in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs
Sub Contracting Charges 3,763.84 3,464.07
Legal and Professional fees 318.36 188.81
Freight & Forwarding Charges 630.10 628.89
Rent [Refer Note 40(A)] 25.99 111.83
Scaffolding and other Hire Charges 340.76 352.40
Rates and Taxes 147.10 35.10
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 149.83 179.98
Payment to Auditor (Refer Note 30) 42.70 42.62
Repairs and Maintenance Expenses
Plant and machinery 95.60 70.93
Buildings 50.27 69.54
Others 69.53 102.95
Selling and Distribution Expenses 17.96 71.18
Power and Fuel 145.33 150.08
Exchange Difference (net) - 145.00
Communication Cost 14.79 18.78
Printing & Stationery 23.39 24.69
Insurance 39.72 48.82
Loss on discard of Property,Plant & Equipment 0.85 -
Provision for diminution in value of investment - 0.50
Loss on Commodity Trading - 47.90
Provision for Doubtful Debts 703.86 .
Provision for Doubtful Advances 88.05 n
Bad debts written off 36.84 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 19.51 6.42
6,724.38 5,760.49
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Earning Per Share (EPS)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
T in Lakhs Z in Lakhs

Net Profit / (Loss) after taxation ( ¥ in Lakhs) 2,106.94 20.55
Net Profit / (Loss) after taxation ( 2 in Lakhs) (Attributable to ordinary equity shareholders) 1,539.31 (68.95)
Net Profit / (Loss) after taxation ( ? in Lakhs) (Attributable to Class B equity shareholders) 567.63 89.50
Equity Shares (ordinary)

Weighted average number of Equity Shares for computing EPS 1,49,83,640 1,49,83,640
Nominal Value of Shares (In ) 10.00 10.00
Basic Earning Per Share (In %) 10.27 (0.46)
Diluted Earning Per Share (In %) 10.27 (0.46)
Equity Shares (Class B)

Weighted average number of Class B Equity Shares for computing EPS 44,54,595 44,54,595
Nominal Value of Shares (In 3) 10.00 10.00
Basic Earning Per Share (In 3) 12.74 2.01
Diluted Earning Per Share (In %) 12.74 2.01

Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard -7 'Construction Contracts'

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

% in Lakhs 2 in Lakhs
1. Total Contract Revenue recognised for the year (Refer Note 21) 27,753.80 23,900.07
2. For Contracts in progress as at reporting date
a. Aggregate contract costs incurred till the reporting date 67,230.71 94,445.66
b. Profit/(Losses) recognized till the reporting date 14,322.41 14,051.47
c. Estimated Losses to completion of long term contracts - -
d. Advance received from customers (Refer Note 9) 4,675.13 6,707.06
e. Retention money withheld by customer 3,998.97 3,905.89
3. Gross amount due from customers for contract work 6,503.10 6,185.46
Contingent Liabilities

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

% in Lakhs ?in Lakhs
Claim against the Company not acknowledge as debts
- Maharashtra VAT Demand (Refer Note below) 3,121.30 3,121.30
- Other VAT and CST matters 199.30 199.30
- Income Tax Matters 20.13 20.13
3,340.73 3,340.73

Above amounts also include interest and penalty as mentioned in respective year wise demand orders.

Note:

The Joint Commissioner (Appeals) adjudicated the Maharashtra VAT assessment for the financial years 2005-06 to 2017-18 against which the Company has filed
appeals with the Tribunal. As a result of the status of these assessment orders, it is possible that the Company may incur a liability of 2 3,121.30 Lakhs for the financial
vears 2005-06 to 2017-18. The VAT assessments for financial years 2005-06 to 2017-18 are pending at various stages of appeal. In the event the said amount is payable
by the Company, management believes, it has ability to recover similar amounts from the respective customers, since such amounts relates to sales made to those
customers. Accordingly in management's view, as these amounts are payable and recoverable, they are not recognized in these financial statements. As these matters

are pending before appellate authorities, these are disclosed as contingent liability given the uncertainties involved.

Payment to auditor (excluding goods and service tax)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

T in Lakhs T in Lakhs

Statutory Audit Fees 25.75 27.62

Others

- Special Purpose Audit Fees - 15.00

- Limited Review Fees 15.45 -

- Certification Fees 1.03 -

Out of Pocket Expenses 0.47 =
42.70 42.62

Expenditure in Foreign Currency (Accrual basis)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

2 in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Legal and professional fees - 27.96
Selling and Distribution Expenses 0.83 14.78
0.83 42.74
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Value of imports calculated on CIF basis
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
% in Lakhs 2 in Lakhs
Raw Materials 1,861.63 74.67
Property, Plant & Equipment 32.43 -
1,894.06 74.67

Imported and indigenous raw materials, components and spare parts consumed
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
% of tntfl % in Lakhs % of tat?l % in Lakhs
consumption consumption

Raw Material
-lmported 12.66% 1,861.63 0.50% 74.67
-Indigenous 87.34% 12,837.68 99.50% 14,739.81

100.00% 14,699.31 100.00% 14,814.48

35 Corp

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
¥ in Lakhs % in Lakhs
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 905.72 353.18
Interest due on above 34.95 21.53
940.67 374.71
The amount of interest paid by the buver in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the = ]
amounts of the payment made to the supplier bevond the appointed day during each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid - 2
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act, 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting vear 34.95 21.53

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

te S

ial Responsibility

31 March 2024
¥ in Lakhs

31 March 2023
% in Lakhs

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
(b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year

{c) Amount spent during the year ending on 31 March 2024:

31 March 2024

In Cash
? in Lakhs

In Kind
I in Lakhs

31 March 2023

In Cash
% in Lakhs

In Kind
2 in Lakhs

(i) construction/acquisition of any asset -
(ii) on purpose other than (i) above -

{d) Details related to spent/unspent obligations:

31 March 2024
¥ in Lakhs

31 March 2023
¥ in Lakhs

Health care
Education

(e} Details for unspent amount and amount to be carried for excess spent as per 135(3):
(i) There is no unspent amount of CSR activities as on March 31, 2024 as per section 135(5)
(i) Details of excess amount spent

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

tin Lakhs % in Lakhs
135(5) Excess amount spent
Opening Balance 0.39* 0.39*
Amount required to be spent during the year - =
Amount spent during the yvear - =
Closing Balance 0.39* 0.39*

* As per provision of Section 135(5) of Companies Act, 2013 Company is allowed to carry forward any amount spent in relation to CSR activities if it exceeds the
minimum expenditure as required by Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.The, Company has decided to carrv forward excess spent amount in the FY 2021-22 10

the subsequent years.

or the vear ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, section 135 of Companies Act,2013 is not applicable to the Company.
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36 Segment Reporting

The Company has only one business segment "Construction Activities” as its primary segment and hence disclosure of segment-wise information is not required under

Accounting Standard 17 - ‘Segmental Information’.
The disclosure as to secondary segment, i.e. ‘geographical segments’ is given below:

31 March 2024

Overseas Indian operations Total
operations
1 in Lakhs 2 in Lakhs
Segment revenue
Revenue From Operations 13,285.84 14,467.96 27,753.80
Carrying amount of assets by geographical location of assets
Segment assets 2,684.86 21,514.75 24,199 61
Capital expenditure in Tangible and Intangible Property, Plant & Equipment 32.43 156.74 189.17
31 March 2023
QOverseas Indian operations Total
T in Lakhs T in Lakhs
Segment revenue
Revenue From Operations 1,590.90 22,309.17 23,900.07
Carrying amount of assets by geographical location of assets
Segment assets 2,684.86 25,082.64 27,767.50
Capital expenditure in Tangible and Intangible Property, Plant & Equipment - 263.78 263.78

37 Capital and Other Commitments

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

% in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs
Capital Commitments 522.52 116.16
522.52 116.16

38 Related party disclosures
Names of related parties and related party relationship

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

i) Entities having significant influence in the Company
India Business Excellence Fund — 11A

ii) Joint Venture
Indus Facade Private Limited (The entity has been strike off during the year)

iii) Key Management Personnel
Mr. Jawahar H. Hemrajani (Director)
Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari (Director)
Mr. Eshan J. Hemrajani (Director)
Mr. Sanjay Sawant (Chief Financial Officer) (till 16 April 2024)
Mr. Vivek Baid (Chief Financial Officer) (w.e.f. 11 July 2024)
Ms. Rajeshree Chougule (Company Secretary) (till 11 July 2024)
Ms. Shruti Waghela (Company Secretary) (w.e.f. 11 July 2024)

iv) Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel or their relatives are interested
M.J. Coaters Private Limited
Arham Engineers
GWS Engineers & Fabricators Private limited
GWS Fabricators Private limited
Yes Svstems Private Limited
Aksara Industries (Partnership Firm)
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31 March 2024

31 March 2023

% in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs
A) Transactions during the year:
Purchases of Materials
M.J.Coaters Private Limited = 1.12
Arham Engineers - 27.06
GWS Engineers & Fabricators Private limited 5.34 -
Job Work/Sub-contract Services/Other Services Received
M.J.Coaters Private Limited 1,718.11 890.03
GWS Engineers & Fabricators Private limited 61.13 3.94
Aksara Industries (Partnership Firm) £ 25.81
Revenue from Construction Contracts
GWS Engineers & Fabricators Private limited 0.42 1.29
Sale of Duty drawback
Yes Systems Private Limited - 18.35
Dividend paid
India Business Excellence Fund - I[IA 94.00 94.00
Reimbursement of expenses Paid / (Received)
M.J.Coaters Private Limited 5.37 5.36
Advance against salary given
Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari 3.82 126.00
Advance against salary received back
Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari 3.82 126.00
Managerial Remuneration (Refer Note 2 below)
Mr. Jawahar H. Hemrajani 108.01 108.00
Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari 108.01 108.00
Mr. Eshan J, Hemrajani 60.01 60.00
Mr. Sanjay Sawant 39.21 32.02
Ms. Rajeshree Chougule 8.21 6.91

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Tin Lakhs % in Lakhs
B) Balance Outstanding at the end of year:
Investment in Joint Ventures
Indus Facade Private Limited - 0.50
Trade Payables
GWS Engineers & Fabricators Private Limited - 2.52
M.J.Coaters Private Limited 559.62 527.18
Employee Dues
Mr. Jawahar H. Hemrajani - 5.97
Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari - 5.97
Mr. Eshan J. Hemrajani - 3.50
Mr. Sanjay Sawant = 1.79
Ms. Rajeshree Chougule = 0.63
Other Receivables
GWS Engineers & Fabricators Private Limited 2.02 -
Yes Systems Private Limited - 2.19

Note 1: Cash Credit from banks is guaranteed by Personal Guarantee of Mr. Jawahar H. Hemrajani and Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari & Corporate Guarantee of GWS

Engineers & Fabricators Private Limited and GWS Fabricators Private limited (Refer Note 7).

Note 2: The remuneration to the kev managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an actuarial

basis for the Company as a whole.
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Gratuity and other post employment benefit plans

24

a) Defined Contribution Plan- Amount recognised and included in Note 24 “Contribution to provident and other funds” 2 74.09 Lakhs (31 March 2023: 2 78.21 Lakhs).

b) Defined Benefit Plan: The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan as given below:

Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is eligible for gratuity on departure @ 15 days Basic salary for each completed year of service. The scheme

is unfunded.
Defined Benefit Plans as per Actuarial valuation

I) Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

? in Lakhs { in Lakhs
Current service cost 38.55 37.64
Past Service Cost ) )
Interest cost 23.36 2691
Expected return on plan assets = =
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss 13.41 (67.37)
Net Benefit Expense 75.32 (2.82)

II) Amount recognised in Balance Sheet

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

2 in Lakhs T in Lakhs
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 360.30 319.26
Fair value of Plan Assets - -
Plan Asset/(Liability) 360.30 319.26

III) Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

?in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 319.26 420.74
Interest cost 23.36 26.91
Past Service Cost - -
Current service cost 38.55 37.64
Benefits paid (34.28) (98.66)
Actuarial (gain)/loss 13.41 (67.37)
*Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 360.30 319.26
* Break up of Closing Defined Benefit Obligation
- Current 83.08 70.75
- Non-current 277.22 248.51
IV) Actuarial ptions
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
2 in Lakhs T in Lakhs
Discount rate 7.15% 7.30%
Salary escalation 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition Rate g
-Senior Management & Middle Management 10.00% 10.00%
-Junior Management & Workers 20.00% 20.00%

Mortality Rate

Indian Assured Indian Assured Lives
Lives Mortality Mortality (2012-14)
(2012-14) Ultimate Ultimate

V) Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:

31 March 2024

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

% in Lakhs I in Lakhs  in Lakhs ? in Lakhs ? in Lakhs
Gratuity
Defined benefit obligation 360.30 319.26 420.74 394.55 366.59
Plan assets . = - - -
Surplus / (deficit) (360.30) (319.26) (420.74) (394.55) {366.59)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (10.42) (51.22) 14.96 (52.03)

Experience adjustments on plan assets N

(10.54)

VI) The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply

and demand in the employment market.
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40 Operating lease
( A) Where Company is a lessee

(a) Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

25

31 March 2024
? in Lakhs

31 March 2023
2 in Lakhs

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
More than five yvears

7.08

(b) Operating Lease payment recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss amounting to ¥ 25.99 Lakhs (31 March 2023: ¥ 111.83 Lakhs).

(c) General description of the leasing arrangement
i) Leased Assets: Factory Premises and Other Premises.
ii) Future lease rentals are determined on the basis of agreed terms.

iii) The lease agreements have an escalation clause. There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements. There are no subleases.
iv) At the expiry of the lease term, the Company has an option either to return the asset or extend the term by giving notice in writing.

( B) Where Company is a lessor

(a) Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

31 March 2024
T in Lakhs

31 March 2023
Zin Lakhs

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
More than five years

1.67

(b) Operating Lease income recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss amounting to 2 13.78 Lakhs (31 March 2023: 2 0.25 Lakhs)

(c) General description of the leasing arrangement

i) Leased Assets: Office Premises & Residential premises

ii) Future lease rentals are determined on the basis of agreed terms.
iii) The lease agreements have an escalation clause.

41 Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

42

Amount in Amount in Loecal Amount in Amount in Local

Foreign Currency Currency Foreign Currency Currency

Particulars Currency 2 in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Trade Receivables usD 32,20,267 2,684.86 46,540 38.26
Advance from Customers uUsD 46,60,516 3,885.65 47,71,261 3,922.78
Advance to Suppliers usb - - 3,061,856 297.51
Advance to Suppliers EURO - - 17,368 15.56
6:570.51 4,274.11

Subsequent Events

(i) Subsequent to the year end, on 2 April 2024, Goods and Service Tax (GST) search has been carried out in the premises of the Company under section 67 of
Maharashtra Goods and Services tax Act, 2017 and Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017. During the search, investigating team raised certain findings and
summoned the Company and following which the Company has submitted its reply on 12 April 2024 and 2 May 2024 along with the calculation of possible liability
aggregating to 2 200.31 Lakhs including interest and penalty and suo-motto paid / adjusted input tax credit to that extent. The effect of the same aggregating to ¥ 200.31
Lakhs is considered by making the provision in these financial statement. Final order from GST department in relation to this search is awaited.

(ii) Subsequent to the year end, The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 25 May, 2024 approved the proposal for buy-back of 42,53,910 fully paid up
equity shares (including Class B Equity Shares) of face value of ¥ 10/- in accordance with Sections 68, 69, 70 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act. The
Company has completed its buyback including extinguishment of its bought back shares on 09 July, 2024. the Company has filed return of buyback with Registrar of
Companies (ROC) in prescribed Form "SH.11 - Return in respect of buy-back of securities” and the same is approved on 08 August, 2024 .

(iii) (a) Subsequent to the year end, the Board of Directors at their Board meeting held on 11 July,2024 has declared coupon on Class B equity shares @@ 2% per annum on
subscription amount for the vear Financial Year 2023-24 and the same has been paid subsequently. .

(iii) (b) Subsequent to the year end, the Board of Directors at their Board meeting held on 11 July,2024 has declared coupon on Class B equity shares @ 2% per annum on
subscription amount for the period from 01 April 2024 to 12 June 2024 and same has been paid subsequently.

There are no events or transactions other than those disclosed in above para which have oceurred since the date of Balance Sheet that could have a material effect on the
financial statements and requires adjustment to the accounting estimates and disclosures made in the financial statements at that date or for the year then ended.
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Ratio Analysis

Ratio

Numerator Denominator 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 % Change Reason for variance
T in Lakhs 2 in Lakhs
Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.29 1.07 20.38 Refer Note 1
Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’'s 0.16 0.50 (67.25) Refer Note 2
Equity
Debt Service Coverage Earnings available for Debt Service** 5.90 1.63 262.03 Refer Note 3
ratio Debt Service*
Return on Equity ratio Net Profits after taxes Average 0.20 0.00 9,264.36 Refer Note 4
Shareholder's
Equity
[nventory Turnover Net Sales Average inventory 11.39 11.50 (1.03)
ratio
Trade Receivable Net Sales Average Trade 2.79 2.51 11.29
Turnover Ratio Receivable
Trade Payable Net Credit Average Trade 4.81 3.92 22.48
Turnover Ratio Purchases***** Pavable
Net Capital Turnover Net Sales Working Capital*** 7.34 18.24 (59.76) Refer Note 5
Ratio
Net Profit ratio Net Profit Net Sales 0.08 0.00 8,730.39 Refer Note 6
Return on Capital Earnings before Capital 0.34 0.05 473.78 Refer Note 7
Employed interest and taxes Employed****
Return on Investment Income generated Time Weighted 0.06 0.04 62.91 Refer Note 8
from Investments Average
Investments

* Earnings available for Debt Service = Net profit after taxes + Non cash operating expenses like depreciation and amortizations + Interest + loss on sale of fixed assets

**Debt Service = Interest + Principle payments

*** Working capital = Current assets - Current liabilities

#+»+ Capital Emploved = Tangible net worth + Total debt + Deferred liability - Intangible assets

Net Credit Purchases***** = Purchase of goods and services and other expense-provision for doubtful advance - provision for doubtful debts and written off

Note 1 - Current ratio increased owing to improved working capital performance

Note 2 - Debt-Equity ratio decreased owing to less utilisation of cash credit facility and increase in profit.
Note 3 - Debt Service Coverage ratio increased owing to increase in EBIDTA

Note 4 - Return on Equity ratio increased owing to increase in profit during the year

Note 5 - Net Capital Turnover Ratio decreased owing to less utilisation of cash credit facility

Note 6 - Net profit ratio increased owing to increase in profit during the year

Note 7 - Return on Capital Employed increased owing te increase in EBITA

Note 8 - Return on Investment increased owing to increase in fixed deposit interest rates.

Other Statutory Information
(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) The Company does not have any transactions with companies which has been struck off by ROC under section 248 of the companies Act, 2013 other than the following

Name of struck off Company
Nature of Balance outstanding Relationship with
transactions with the Struck off
struck-off company, if any, to
Company 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 be disclosed
Trindent Eservices Pvt. Ltd. - 0.70 | None
Advance to Vendor

(iii) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iv) The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(v] The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

(vi) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(vii) The Company have not entered into any Cryptocurrency or Virtual currency transactions during the financial year.
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(vii#) The Company has not entered in scheme of arrangements approved by the competent authority in terms of sections 232 to 237 of the Companies Act,2013.
(ix) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or other lender
(x) The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has aperated

throughout the vear for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data for users with certain

privileged access rights to the accounting software or the underlying database. Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of the
accounting software.

Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

?in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs
Exports at F.O.B value 14,067.79 1,320.37
Net dividend remitted in foreign exchange
Year of remittance (ending on) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

¥ in Lakhs T in Lakhs
Year to which it relates 1 April 2023 to 1 April 2022 to

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Number oi non-resident shareholders 1 1
Number of equity shares held on which dividend was due 38,060,654 38,006,654
Amount remitted (in USD) 1,17,346 1,08,374
Amount remitted (in INR) 94 94

Disclosure required under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013
During the current and previous financial year, the Company has not granted loan, investment made or gurantee given or security provided as specified under section
186(4] of the Companies Act,2013. Accordingly, the disclosure requirement under section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loan to its promoter, director, key managerial personal and the other related parties (as defined under the Companies Act,2013} which are
repavble on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment or any other loans or advance in the nature of loans.

Previous vear's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable with current year's figures.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
G Wall Systems (India) Private Limited
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